

Brown to Green Report 2018: The G20 transition to a low-carbon economy Technical Note: Methodology and Data sources

14 November 2018

The Brown to Green 2018 report, including the country profiles, assesses the G20 countries' past, present and indications of future performance towards a low-carbon economy by evaluating emissions, climate policy performance, climate-related finance and decarbonisation. This technical note lists the sources and methods used to calculate the indicators presented in each country profile in their order of appearance.

Contents

1.	Bac	kground Indicators	2
	1.1	Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions per capita	2
	1.2	GDP per capita	2
	1.3	Human Development Index	3
	1.4	University of Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative (ND-GAIN) index	3
	Table	1: ND-GAIN Exposure components	4
2.	Gre	enhouse gas (GHG) emissions	5
	2.1	GHG emissions and emission trends	5
	2.2	Energy-related CO ₂ emissions	5
3.	Dec	arbonisation	6
	3.1	Ratings on decarbonisation indicators	6
	3.2	Energy mix	6
	3.3	Share of fossil fuels and 'zero-carbon fuels' in energy supply	6
	Table	2: Rating of share of fossil fuel	7
	Table	3: Rating of share of zero-carbon energy	8
	3.4	New renewables	8
	Table	4: Rating of the share of new renewables	9
	3.5	Energy use per capita	9
	Table	5: Rating for energy use per capita	10
	3.6	Energy intensity of the economy	10
	Table	6: Rating of energy intensity of the economy	11
	3.7	Carbon intensity of the energy sector	11
	Table	7: Carbon intensity of the energy sector	12
	3.8	Sector-specific indicators	12
4.	Clin	nate policy performance	14
	4.1	Compatibility of climate targets with the Paris Agreement	14
	4.2	Nationally determined contribution (NDC)	14
	4.3	Policy evaluation	14
	Table	8: Scoring categories for policy evaluation	15
	4.4	Climate Change Performance Index (CCPI) experts' policy evaluation	
	4.5	Just transition	16
5.	Fina	ancing the transition	16



	5.1	Approaches to implementing the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-rela	ted
	Finan	cial Disclosure	16
	5.2	Fossil fuel subsidies	17
	5.3	Carbon revenues	18
	Table	9: Subnational emissions trading schemes (planned or implemented) in the analysis	18
	5.4	National and international public finance in the power sector	19
	Table	10: List of public finance institutions included in Oil Change International's Shift the	
	Subsid	dies database	20
	5.5	Contributions through the major multilateral climate funds	21
	Table	11: Multilateral climate change funds	22
	5.6	Bilateral climate finance contributions	23
Ann	ex		25
S	ources:	Policy evaluation	25
S	ources:	Just Transition	40

1. Background Indicators

1.1 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions per capita

PRIMAP-hist combines several published datasets to create a comprehensive set of GHG emissions pathways for every country and all Kyoto gases covering the years 1850 to 2015. The data resolves the main International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) 1996 categories (Energy, Industrial Processes, Solvent and Other Product Use, Agriculture, Land-Use Change and Forestry, and Waste). Data presented in the Brown to Green Report 2018 is for 2015. For Argentina and Mexico more recent GHG emission data from national data sources were used. Population data is taken as reported by the World Bank.

World Bank (2018). Population total. Retrieved from:

https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SP.POP.TOTL

Gütschow, J.; Jeffery, L.; Gieseke, R.; Gebel, R. (2018). The PRIMAP-hist national historical emissions time series (1850-2015). V. 1.2. GFZ Data Services. Retrieved from: https://doi.org/10.5880/PIK.2018.003

Argentina. **Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable República Argentina (2017).** Segundo Informe Bienal de Actualización de la República Argentina. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/2doBUR%20-%20Argentina.pdf</u>

Mexico. Instituto Nacional de Ecología y Cambio Climático (2018). Inventario Nacional de Emisiones de Gases y Compuestos de Efecto Invernadero. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/inventario-nacional-de-emisiones-de-gases-y-compuestos-de-efecto-invernadero</u>

1.2 GDP per capita

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is the value of all final goods and services produced within a country in a given year. GDP per capita is calculated by dividing the GDP of a country with midyear population figures. The Brown to Green Report 2018 uses GDP figures at purchasing power parity (PPP) from 2017, drawn from World Bank. The figures were deflated applying 2015/2011 US\$ deflation.



World Bank (2018). GDP PPP per capita (constant 2011 international \$). Retrieved from: <u>https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/NY.GDP.PCAP.PP.KD</u>

World Bank (2018). GDP deflator. Retrieved from: https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/NY.GDP.DEFL.ZS?locations=US

1.3 Human Development Index

The Human Development Index (HDI) is a composite index published by the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP). It is a summary measure of average achievement in key dimensions of human development with 1.0 being the highest possible score. A country scores higher when the lifespan is higher, the education level is higher, and GDP per capita is higher. Data presented in the Brown to Green Report 2018 is for 2017.

UNDP (2018). Human Development Indices and Indicators. 2018 Statistical Update. United Nations Development Programme. Retrieved from: <u>http://hdr.undp.org/en/2018-update</u>

1.4 University of Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative (ND-GAIN) index

The ND-GAIN Country Index, a project of the University of Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative (ND-GAIN), summarises a country's vulnerability to climate change and other global challenges in combination with its readiness to improve resilience.

The vulnerability index consists of six sectoral indicators which are again composed by six subindicators, measuring exposure, sensitivity, and adaptive capacity to climate impacts. The Brown to Green Report only shows the exposure sub-indicators. These sub-indicators show the extent to which human society and its supporting sectors are stressed by the future changing climate conditions based on an approximately 2°C scenario.

ND-GAIN (2017). Notre Dame Global Adaptation Index 2016. Retrieved from:

https://gain.nd.edu/our-work/country-index/



Table 1: ND-GAIN Exposure components

Sector	Exposure component
Food	Projected impact of climate change on the actual yields of rice, wheat and maize. Projected change is the percent decrease of the cereal yields from the baseline projection (1980-2009) to a future projection (2040-2069) using RCP 4.5 emission scenario.
	Projection of increased food demand approximated by population growth. The projected population growth is calculated from the population projection by Health, Nutrition and Population Statistics (HNPStats) from 2010 to 2050.
Water	Projected impact of climate change on annual surface runoff, taking into account precipitation, evaporation, transpiration and soil moisture. The projected change is the percent decrease in annual runoff from the baseline projection (1980-2009) to the future projection (2040-2069) using RCP4.5 emission scenario.
	Projected change of climate change impact on annual groundwater recharge. The projected change is the percent decrease of the annual groundwater recharge from the baseline projection (1971-2000) to the future projection (2040-2069) using RCP4.5 emission scenario.
Health	Projected impact of climate change on malnutrition and diarrheal diseases measured by Disability Adjusted Life Years (DALYs). The projected change is the percent increase of DALYs from the historical baseline (2000) to the 2030 estimation using S550 emission scenario.
	Projected change of the hazard of vector-borne diseases. This indicator takes malaria as the type of vector-borne disease measuring its Length of Transmission Season (LTS). The projected change is the percent increase of malaria LTS from the baseline projection (1980-2010) to the future projection in 2050, using RCT4.5 emission scenario.
Ecosystem services	Projected impact of climate change on changes in the biomes occupying a country. The projected change is the fraction of land area within a country that would become a different biome type in the future (2070-2099), by comparing the types of potential biomes in baseline years (1961-1990), using A1B emission scenario.
	Projected impact of climate change impacts on biodiversity in the marine system. The projection is the species turnover (invasion + local extinction) in the future (2050) expressed as a proportion of the initial species richness in 2001-2005 (baseline), using A1B emission scenario.
Human Habitat	Projected impact of climate change on warm periods. The indicator is measured by the warm spell duration index (WSDI), count of days more than (including) 6 consecutive days when the daily maximum temperature exceeds the 90th percentile of daily maximum temperatures in a 5-day window during the baseline period. The projected change is the percent increase of WSDI from the baseline projection (1960-1990) to the future projection (2040-2070), using RCP4.5 emission scenario.
	Projected impact of the climate change on flood. The flood hazard is measured by the monthly maximum precipitation in 5 consecutive days. The projected change is the percent increase of the flood hazard from the baseline projection (1960-1990) to the future projection (2040-2070), using RCP 4.5 emission scenario.
Infrastructure	Projected impact of climate change on hydropower generation capacity, weighted by the dependency on hydropower to approximate the importance of hydropower for a country. The projected change is the percent decrease of the generation capacity from the historical baseline (2005) to the future projection (2050), using A1B emission scenario.
	The proportion of a country's land area adjacent to the ocean and lower than 4 m above sea level, which approximates potential sea level rise by the end of the century (0.32-0.63 m) and the average height of storm surge (2-3 m).



2. Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

2.1 GHG emissions and emission trends

This indicator gives an overview of the country's GHG emissions profile and the direction the country's emissions are taking until 2030 under a current policy scenario. The indicator covers all Kyoto gases: carbon dioxide (CO_2), methane (CH_4), nitrous oxide (N_2O), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), sulphur hexafluoride (SF_6), and nitrogen trifluoride (NF_3). The section displays the data in a stacked graph, showing historic emissions in each of the IPCC source categories (energy, industrial processes, agriculture, etc.). Historical emissions were generally taken from PRIMAP; for Argentina and Mexico, data for GHG emissions were taken from national sources to connect to national debates. Historical emissions and removals from forestry are subject to high variability and are displayed separately in this report so as not to lose information on the emissions trends in other sectors. Emissions projections (excl. forestry) under a current policy scenario until 2030 are taken from the Climate Action Tracker, scaled to the historical emissions from PRIMAP.

Gütschow, J.; Jeffery, L.; Gieseke, R.; Gebel, R. (2018). The PRIMAP-hist national historical emissions time series (1850-2015). V. 1.2. GFZ Data Services. Retrieved from: https://doi.org/10.5880/PIK.2018.003

Argentina: **Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable República Argentina (2017).** Segundo Informe Bienal de Actualización de la República Argentina. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/2doBUR%20-%20Argentina.pdf</u>

Mexico: Instituto Nacional de Ecología y Cambio Climático (2018). Inventario Nacional de Emisiones de Gases y Compuestos de Efecto Invernadero. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/inventario-nacional-de-emisiones-de-gases-y-compuestos-de-efecto-invernadero</u>

CAT (2018). Climate Action Tracker: Assessment of mitigation contributions to the Paris Agreement. Retrieved from: <u>www.climateactiontracker.org</u>

The **rating** for performance in GHG emissions is taken from the Climate Change Performance Index (CCPI) 2018. The CCPI rates the recent developments of GHG per capita (comparing the 2015 to 2010 level) across 57 countries. The 'current levels' rating evaluates the level of GHG per capita in 2015 in comparison to the 57 countries evaluated in the CCPI. Finally, the CCPI rates the compatibility of the country's current performance with the international goal of limiting global temperature rise to well below 2°C. The rating is based on the need to peak GHG emissions by 2020, and to decline CO₂ emissions to net zero by around 2050. To calculate individual country emission pathways, the CCPI uses the common but differentiated convergence approach. The CCPI evaluates the difference between the individual country pathway and current emissions per capita.

Germanwatch (2018). Climate Change Performance Index (CCPI) 2018 – Background and methodology note. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.climate-change-performance-index.org/the-climate-change-performance-index-2018-background-methodology</u>

2.2 Energy-related CO₂ emissions

CO₂ emissions from energy account for the highest share of total GHG emissions in most countries. They are emissions resulting from fuel combustion (coal, oil and gas) in transport, households, services



and agriculture, industries, and for the generation of electricity and heat. Emissions are calculated according to the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National GHG Inventories.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html</u>

3. Decarbonisation

3.1 Ratings on decarbonisation indicators

The partnership Climate Transparency provides ratings for different decarbonisation indicators. These ratings assess the relative performance across the G20. A high scoring reflects a good effort from a climate protection perspective but is not necessarily 1.5°C compatible. The ratings assess both the 'current level' and 'recent developments' to take account of the different starting points of different G20 countries. The 'recent developments' ratings compare the 2017 value to the 2012 value. This approach allows taking account of latest available data. However, this is not a standard linear trend approach and does not filter out variances (e.g. due to economic developments or climatic variations) across years, which can lead to significant differences for performance ranking of individual countries.

3.2 Energy mix

Total primary energy supply (TPES) is the sum of energy production, energy imports and stock variations minus energy exports and international bunkers. Other reports sometimes consider total final consumption, which is TPES minus losses in energy conversion. From a climate perspective it is, however, more important how much fuel is fed into the system and combusted, and not how much energy is consumed by end users.

'Others' covers mainly solid fuel biomass from residential use, which is shown separately because of its negative social and environmental impacts.

All energy data shown in the Brown to Green Report is from Enerdata and excludes non-energy use values, i.e. fuels that are used as raw materials.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from: https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html

3.3 Share of fossil fuels and 'zero-carbon fuels' in energy supply

The category **Fossil fuels** includes oil, gas and coal.

'Zero-carbon' technologies are energy sources that create no net GHG emissions from fuel combustion. It should, however, be noted that the label 'zero-carbon' might be misinterpreted since carbon emissions might occur if considering the entire life-cycle of the technology. For example, indirect emissions (e.g. steel used for the construction of a plant) or emissions from e.g. transporting fuels are not considered. The Brown to Green Report includes nuclear energy, hydropower and new renewables (solar, wind, geothermal, non-residential biomass) under 'zero-carbon' fuels. 'Zero-carbon' technologies may also include fossil fuel energy when combined with carbon capture and storage technology, but this technology has not yet been implemented in G20 countries and is thus not accounted for in the data.



'Others' covers mainly solid fuel biomass from residential use, which is shown separately from 'zerocarbon' technologies because of its negative social and environmental impacts.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from:

https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html

A country with a small share of fossil fuels, when compared to other G20 countries, receives a very high **rating** for 'current level'. Those G20 countries with the highest reduction rate (2012-2017) in the share of fossil fuels in the energy mix receive a very high rating for 'recent developments'.

	2012 (% of TPES)	2017 (% of TPES)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012-2017)	Rating recent developments
Argentina	89%	89%	low	-0,04%	low
Australia	94%	93%	very low	-1,06%	medium
Brazil	57%	55%	very high	-2,51%	high
Canada	75%	75%	medium	1,00%	very low
China	91%	89%	low	-2,78%	high
EU	74%	72%	medium	-2,32%	High
France	49%	48%	very high	-2,68%	high
Germany	81%	80%	low	-0,29%	low
India	72%	73%	medium	1,17%	very low
Indonesia	66%	67%	high	2,08%	very low
Italy	82%	80%	low	-1,96%	high
Japan	95%	93%	very low	-2,08%	high
Mexico	91%	90%	very low	-1,17%	medium
Russia	91%	90%	very low	-1,43%	medium
Saudi Arabia	100%	100%	very low	0,00%	very low
South Africa	87%	86%	low	-1,69%	medium
South Korea	81%	80%	low	-1,48%	medium
Turkey	89%	88%	low	-1,44%	medium
United Kingdom	85%	78%	medium	-7,74%	very high
USA	83%	82%	low	-1,59%	medium

Table 2: Rating of share of fossil fuel

The 'recent developments' of zero-carbon energy is measured as change in absolute levels (comparing the 2017 share in TPES to the 2012 share in TPES) relative to the absolute level (in 2012). If a country's absolute level of zero-carbon energy is at a low level, a rather small absolute change could be reflected as a high relative change and positive rating, even if absolute change is small compared to other countries.



Table 3: Rating of share of zero-carbon energy

	2012 (% of TPES)	2017 (% of TPES)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012-2017)	Rating recent developments
Argentina	10,53%	10,68%	medium	1,42%	low
Australia	4,50%	5,72%	low	27,17%	high
Brazil	41,02%	42,66%	very high	4,00%	medium
Canada	24,22%	23,91%	high	-1,26%	very low
China	5,05%	8,32%	low	64,74%	very high
EU	23,63%	25,33%	high	7,16%	medium
France	48,39%	49,12%	very high	1,51%	low
Germany	17,71%	17,96%	medium	1,40%	low
India	9,97%	10,14%	medium	1,64%	low
Indonesia	11,90%	13,23%	medium	11,15%	medium
Italy	13,80%	15,76%	medium	14,21%	medium
Japan	5,36%	7,33%	low	36,85%	high
Mexico	5,74%	6,74%	low	17,43%	high
Russia	8,90%	10,20%	medium	14,69%	medium
Saudi Arabia	0,00%	0,00%	very low	-20,86%	very low
South Africa	6,34%	7,42%	low	17,00%	high
'South Korea	18,90%	20,04%	high	6,06%	medium
Turkey	7,61%	10,30%	medium	35,34%	high
United Kingdom	14,31%	20,63%	high	44,12%	very high
USA	16,07%	17,52%	medium	9,02%	medium

3.4 New renewables

The indicator 'New renewables' covers solar, wind, geothermal and non-residential biomass. It excludes unsustainable renewable sources such as large hydropower or traditional biomass used in the residential sector (mainly fuel wood used for cooking). As separate data for small-scale hydropower is not available, this report excludes all hydropower from 'new renewables'.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from:

https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html

The 'recent developments' **rating** of new renewables is based on the change in absolute levels, (comparing the 2017share in TPES to the 2012 share in TPES) relative to the absolute level (in 2012). If a country's absolute level of new renewables is at a low level, a rather small absolute change could be reflected as a high relative change and positive rating, even if absolute change is small compared to other countries.



	2012 (% of TPES)	2017 (% of TPES)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012-2017)	Rating recent developments
Argentina	3,73%	4,23%	low	13,40%	medium
Australia	3,24%	4,53%	low	39,84%	high
Brazil	25,47%	28,89%	very high	13,39%	medium
Canada	4,13%	4,51%	low	9,23%	medium
China	0,78%	1,91%	low	144,77%	very high
EU	6,90%	9,20%	high	33,28%	high
France	3,36%	5,29%	medium	57,44%	high
Germany	7,75%	10,61%	high	36,92%	high
India	7,28%	7,62%	medium	4,60%	medium
Indonesia	11,38%	12,55%	high	10,26%	medium
Italy	8,68%	11,03%	high	27,05%	high
Japan	2,52%	3,55%	low	40,81%	high
Mexico	2,88%	3,66%	low	27,04%	high
Russia	0,33%	0,33%	very low	0,52%	low
Saudi Arabia	0,00%	0,00%	very low	-11,04%	very low
South Africa	4,28%	4,89%	low	14,37%	medium
South Korea	3,24%	5,61%	medium	73,23%	very high
Turkey	1,27%	5,14%	medium	306,31%	very high
United Kingdom	3,65%	8,50%	high	133,28%	very high
United States	4,75%	5,83%	medium	22,71%	medium

Table 4: Rating of the share of new renewables

3.5 Energy use per capita

Total Primary Energy Supply (TPES) per capita displays the energy supply in relation to a country's population. The level of energy use per capita is closely related to economic development, climatic conditions and the price of energy. There are enormous differences in the level of energy use per capita between low- and middle-income economies, and high-income economies.

The Brown to Green Report uses TPES data from 2017, drawn from Enerdata, and population data from World Bank.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html</u>

World Bank (2018). Population total. Retrieved from:

https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SP.POP.TOTL

For 'current level', a very high **rating** implies one of the lowest levels of energy use per capita in the G20. For 'recent developments' a very high rating implies a high reduction from 2012 to 2017, when compared to other G20 countries.



Table 5: Rating for energy use per capita

	2012 (GJ/capita)	2017 (GJ/capita)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012-2017)	Rating recent development
Argentina	80,40	80,88	high	0,60%	low
Australia	233,55	220,44	very low	-5,61%	high
Brazil	58,97	58,12	very high	-1,45%	medium
Canada	322,96	328,07	very low	1,58%	low
China	87,40	93,80	medium	7,33%	low
EU28	136,66	131,50	low	-3,77%	high
France	160,90	151,48	low	-5,86%	high
Germany	161,89	157,88	low	-2,47%	medium
India	25,55	29,48	very high	15,38%	very low
Indonesia	35,51	38,03	very high	7,08%	low
Italy	113,57	105,74	medium	-6,89%	high
Japan	148,08	141,60	low	-4,38%	high
Mexico	66,48	60,25	very high	-9,37%	very high
Russia	216,16	215,42	very low	-0,34%	low
Saudi Arabia	286,99	283,54	very low	-1,20%	medium
South Africa	110,65	103,17	medium	-6,76%	high
South Korea	225,63	240,37	very low	6,53%	low
Turkey	66,33	78,55	high	18,43%	very low
United Kingdom	127,46	111,11	medium	-12,83%	very high
USA	288,22	283,19	very low	-1,74%	medium

3.6 Energy intensity of the economy

TPES per unit of GDP describes the energy intensity of a country's economy. This indicator illustrates the efficiency of energy usage by calculating the energy needed to produce one unit of GDP. A decrease in this indicator can mean an increase in efficiency but also reflects structural economic changes.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html</u>

World Bank (2017). The World Bank's Open Data initiative. Retrieved from: http://data.worldbank.org/indicator/

A very high **rating** for 'current level' implies one of the lowest levels of energy intensity in the G20. A very high rating for 'recent developments' signals a high reduction from 2012 to 2017, when compared to the G20 peers.



Table 6: Rating of energy intensity of the economy

	2012 (TJ/million US\$2015)	2017 (TJ/million US\$2015)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012-2017)	Rating recent developments
Argentina	3,93	4,05	medium	3,18%	very low
Australia	5,18	4,65	low	-10,24%	high
Brazil	3,66	3,90	medium	6,37%	very low
Canada	7,51	7,26	very low	-3,35%	low
China	7,36	5,76	low	-21,79%	very high
EU	3,65	3,28	high	-10,17%	high
France	3,95	3,61	medium	-8,65%	medium
Germany	3,45	3,23	high	-6,37%	medium
India	4,89	4,27	medium	-12,79%	very high
Indonesia	3,61	3,19	very high	-11,45%	high
Italy	2,96	2,77	very high	-6,47%	medium
Japan	3,78	3,39	high	-10,52%	high
Mexico	3,94	3,43	high	-12,79%	very high
Russia	8,84	8,84	very low	-0,04%	low
Saudi Arabia	5,43	5,40	low	-0,44%	low
South Africa	8,43	7,97	very low	-5,39%	medium
South Korea	7,05	6,66	very low	-5,58%	medium
Turkey	3,18	3,12	very high	-1,94%	low
United Kingdom	3,20	2,61	very high	-18,53%	very high
USA	5,36	4,92	low	-8,15%	medium

3.7 Carbon intensity of the energy sector

Carbon intensity of a country's energy sector describes the CO_2 emissions per unit of total primary energy supply. It gives an indication on the share of fossil fuels in the energy supply, the choice of fuel (e.g. gas is less carbon intensive than coal) and on the efficiency of generation.

Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO₂ data. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html</u>

A country with a very low level of carbon intensity, when compared to other G20 countries, receives a very high **rating** for 'current level'. A very high rating for 'recent developments' signals a high reduction from 2012 to 2017, when compared to the G20 peers.



Table7: Carbon intensity of the energy sector

Country	2012 (tCO ₂ /TJ)	2017 (tCO₂/TJ)	Rating current (2017)	Recent developments (% change 2012- 2017)	Rating recent developments
Argentina	55,55	54,54	medium	-1,82%	high
Australia	74,96	75,67	very low	0,95%	low
Brazil	36,22	35,89	very high	-0,92%	medium
Canada	50,03	51,84	medium	3,63%	very low
China	72,96	71,52	very low	-1,98%	high
EU	51,43	49,95	high	-2,87%	high
France	31,56	31,96	very high	1,28%	low
Germany	58,87	59,39	low	0,88%	low
India	56,25	57,14	medium	1,58%	low
Indonesia	46,36	48,24	high	4,05%	very low
Italy	55,46	50,78	high	-8,44%	very high
Japan	63,10	62,23	low	-1,38%	medium
Mexico	57,53	56,05	medium	-2,57%	high
Russia	53,81	54,47	medium	1,23%	low
Saudi Arabia	57,71	62,77	low	8,77%	very low
South Africa	72,37	75,10	very low	3,77%	very low
South Korea	55,61	53,92	medium	-3,05%	high
Turkey	62,25	63,43	low	1,89%	low
United Kingdom	57,84	48,73	high	-15,76%	very high
USA	56,63	55,04	medium	-2,81%	high

3.8 Sector-specific indicators

	0	Electricity demand per capita (Data for 2017)
		Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from:
		https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html
	0	Emissions intensity of the power sector (Data for 2017)
		For all G20 countries except Brazil: Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html</u>
		For Brazil: Ministério da Ciência, Tecnologia, Inovações e Comunicações (2018). Fator medio.
		Retrieved from:
Į		http://www.mctic.gov.br/mctic/opencms/ciencia/SEPED/clima/textogeral/emissao_corporativo
sector		<u>s.html</u>
Power	0	Share of renewables in the power generation (Data for 2017)
Po		For all G20 countries except Mexico: Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from:
		https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html
		Mexico: Ministry of Energy (2018). Clean Energy Progress Report. Retrieved from:
		https://www.gob.mx/cms/uploads/attachment/file/354379/Reporte_de_Avance_de_Energ_as_
		Limpias_Cierre_2017.pdf
	0	Share of population with access to electricity (Data for 2016)
		World Bank (2018). Retrieved from: https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/EG.ELC.ACCS.ZS
	0	Share of population with biomass dependency (Data for 2014)
		IEA (2016). Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/energyaccess/database/



	0	Transport emissions per capita (Data for 2017)
		Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from:
		https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html
	0	Motorisation rate (data for different years available depending on the country)
		For all G20 countries except Argentina: Agora Verkehrswende (2018). Towards Decarbonising Transport – A G20 Stocktake on Sectoral Ambition. 2018 Update (forthcoming)
Transport sector		For Argentina: Asociación de Fábricas Argentinas de Compinentes (2018). Flota circulante en Argentina 2017. Retrieved from: http://www.afac.org.ar/; World Bank (2018). Population total. Retrieved from: <u>https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SP.POP.TOTL</u>
	0	Modal split in passenger-km per mode (data for different years available depending on the country)
	0	Modal split in tonne-km per mode (data for different years available depending on the country)
Tra		For all G20 countries except Brazil and Argentina: Agora Verkehrswende (2018). Towards Decarbonising Transport – A G20 Stocktake on Sectoral Ambition. 2018 Update (forthcoming)
		For Brazil: IBGE (2017). Brazil in figures 2017. Retrieved from: <u>https://loja.ibge.gov.br/brasil-em-</u>
		numeros-brazil-in-figures-2017.html For Argentina: Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable (2017). Plan Accion Nacional de Transporte Cambio Climatico- Primer Borrador. Retrieved from:
		https://www.argentina.gob.ar/ambiente/sustentabilidad/planes-sectoriales/transporte
	0	Market share of electric vehicles in new car sales (Data for 2017)
		IEA (2018). Global EV Outlook 2018. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/gevo2018/
	0	Industry emissions intensity (Data for 2015)
		Energy emissions in industry are taken from Enerdata); industry process emissions are taken from PRIMAP; the gross value added for industry (incl. construction) is taken from Enerdata.
		Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from:
ť		https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html
Industry sector		Gütschow, J.; Jeffery, L.; Gieseke, R.; Gebel, R. (2018). The PRIMAP-hist national historical emissions time series (1850-2015). V. 1.2. GFZ Data Services. <u>https://doi.org/10.5880/PIK.2018.003</u>
stry		For Argentina: Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable República Argentina (2017).
npu		Segundo Informe Bienal de Actualización de la República Argentina. Retrieved from:
-		https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/2doBUR%20-%20Argentina.pdf
		For Mexico : Instituto Nacional de Ecología y Cambio Climático (2018). Inventario Nacional de Emisiones de Gases y Compuestos de Efecto Invernadero. Retrieved from:
		https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/inventario-nacional-de-emisiones-de-gases-y-
		<u>compuestos-de-efecto-invernadero</u>
	0	Building emissions per capita (Data for 2016)
Building		Enerdata (2018). Global Energy and CO ₂ data. Retrieved from:
Suilc		https://www.enerdata.net/research/energy-market-data-co2-emissions-database.html
		Only direct emissions are included (different to last Brown to Green report)
	0	Agriculture emissions intensity (Data for 2015)
<u>۔</u>		Gütschow, J.; Jeffery, L.; Gieseke, R.; Gebel, R. (2018). The PRIMAP-hist national historical
ecto		emissions time series (1850-2015). V. 1.2. GFZ Data Services. <u>https://doi.org/10.5880/PIK.2018.003</u> For Argentina: Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable República Argentina (2017).
e Se		Segundo Informe Bienal de Actualización de la República Argentina. Retrieved from:
ltur		https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/2doBUR%20-%20Argentina.pdf
Agriculture sector		For Mexico : Instituto Nacional de Ecología y Cambio Climático (2018). Inventario Nacional de
20		
-		Emisiones de Gases y Compuestos de Efecto Invernadero. Retrieved from: https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-v-programas/inventario-nacional-de-emisiones-de-gases-v-
		Emisiones de Gases y Compuestos de Efecto Invernadero. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/inventario-nacional-de-emisiones-de-gases-y-</u> <u>compuestos-de-efecto-invernadero</u>



Forest area in the country compared to 1990 level (Data for 2015)
 FAOSTAT (2016). Forest land. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/GF</u>
 Please note that the source provided in the country profiles (PRIMAP 2018) is wrong. This is the correct source.

4. Climate policy performance

Forest

4.1 Compatibility of climate targets with the Paris Agreement

The Climate Action Tracker (CAT) is an independent scientific analysis that tracks progress towards the globally agreed aim of holding warming well below 2°C, and pursuing efforts to limit warming to 1.5°C. The CAT rating system evaluates the emissions levels resulting from mitigation commitments against effort sharing benchmarks for each country, thereby enabling a transparent way of comparing NDCs with the many interpretations of what is 'fair'. Using this approach, CAT abstains from defining what is fair but covers a holistic inclusion of very different viewpoints of what could be fair, including considerations of equity such as historical responsibility, capability and equality. It takes into account results from studies that are compatible with the former 2°C goal, as well as the 1.5°C limit in the Paris Agreement, to cover the full range of perspectives and historical developments of the long-term temperature goals. The rating evaluates the emissions level (excluding Land Use, Land-Use Change and Forestry) implied in the NDCs and is based on the assumption that all other governments follow a similar ambition level.

CAT (2018). Climate Action Tracker: Assessment of mitigation contributions to the Paris Agreement. Retrieved from: <u>www.climateactiontracker.org</u>

4.2 Nationally determined contribution (NDC)

The tables give an overview of the main content of a country's NDC submitted to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) Secretariat – or 'intended NDC' (INDC) when the country has not yet handed in its final NDC. The report provides a mere summary of the targets and actions mentioned in the NDCs and does not provide an evaluation.

UNFCCC (2018). NDC Interim Registry. Retrieved from: www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/Pages/Home.aspx

4.3 Policy evaluation

Climate Transparency developed a rating system to assess a country's policy performance (see table below). The selection of policies draws on the Climate Action Tracker (2016) listing ten policies that are essential pre-conditions for the longer-term transformation required to stay below the 1.5°C limit. The selection of policies does not represent a complete picture of what is necessary.

CAT (2016). Climate Action Tracker: The ten most important short-term steps to limit warming to 1.5°C. New Climate Institute, Climate Analytics, Ecofys. Retrieved from: <u>http://climateactiontracker.org/assets/publications/publications/CAT_10_Steps_for_105.pdf</u>

The scoring categories are as follows: the 'frontrunner' score requires a 1.5°C compatible policy; 'high' requires significant action and a long-term vision; 'medium' requires some action; and 'low' shows no action. A more detailed description is shown in the table below.



Table 8: Scoring categories for policy evaluation

	Low	Medium	High	Frontrunner
GHG emissions target for 2050 or beyond	No emissions reduction target for 2050 or beyond	Existing emissions reduction target for 2050 or beyond	Existing emissions reduction target for 2050 or beyond and clear interim steps	Emissions reduction target to bring GHG emissions to at least net zero by 2050
Long-term low emissions development strategy	No long-term low emissions strategy	Existing long-term low emissions strategy	Long-term low emissions strategy includes interim steps and/or sectoral targets	Long-term low emissions strategy towards full decarbonisation in the second half of the century; includes interim steps and/or sectoral targets, plus institutions and measures in place to implement and/or regularly review the strategy
Renewable energy in power sector	Allianz Monitor 2018 Category 1.2 (targets) and 2 (policies), average 0-25	Allianz Monitor 2018 Category 1.2 (targets) and 2 (policies), average 26-60	Allianz Monitor 2018 Category 1.2 (targets) and 2 (policies), average 61-100	Allianz Monitor 2018 Category 1.2 (targets) and 2 (policies), 61-100 plus 100% renewables in the power sector by 2050 in place
Coal phase-out	No consideration or policy in place for phasing out coal	Significant action to reduce coal use implemented or coal phase-out under consideration	Coal phase-out decided and under implementation	Coal phase-out date compatible with 1.5°C
Phase-out of fossil fuel light duty vehicles (LDVs)	No policy or emissions performance standards for LDVs in place	Energy/emissions performance standards or support for efficient LDVs	National target to phase out fossil fuel LDVs in place	Ban on new fossil-based LDVs by 2025/30
Near zero- energy new buildings	No policy or low emissions building codes and standards in place	Building codes, standards or fiscal/financial incentives for low emissions options in place	National strategy for near zero-energy buildings (at least for all new buildings)	National strategy for near zero- energy buildings by 2020/25 (at least for all new buildings)
Low-carbon new industry installations	No policy or support for energy efficiency in industrial production in place	Support for energy efficiency in industrial production (covering at least two of the country's sub-sectors (e.g. cement and steel production))	Target for new installations in emissions-intensive sectors to be low- carbon	Target for new installations in emissions-intensive sectors to be low-carbon after 2020, maximising efficiency
Net zero deforestation	No policy or incentive to reduce deforestation in place	Incentives to reduce deforestation or support schemes for afforestation /reforestation in place	National target for reaching zero deforestation	National target for reaching zero deforestation by 2020s or for increasing forest coverage

The rating for '**Renewable energy in power sector**' draws on the Allianz Climate & Energy Monitor 2018 (forthcoming). Category 1.2 of the Allianz Monitor evaluates whether a country's renewable energy mid-/long-term target is compatible with the Paris Agreement, taking into account the current share of renewable energy and the need for a decarbonised power sector by 2050. Category 2 evaluates the policy environment for renewables, looking at the level of support to achieve cost parity of renewables, and at measures to ensure certainty of investment. The rating in the Brown to Green Report is based on the average of Category 1.2 and Category 2.



New Climate, Germanwatch, Allianz (2018). Allianz Climate & Energy Monitor 2018 (forthcoming).

For the **sources** used for the policy assessment of individual countries, please refer to the Annex.

4.4 Climate Change Performance Index (CCPI) experts' policy evaluation

The CCPI experts' policy evaluation assesses a country's performance in national climate policy, meaning its performance in establishing and implementing a sufficient policy framework at national level, as well as international climate diplomacy. The CCPI policy scores are based on assessments by national climate and energy experts.

Germanwatch (2018). Climate Change Performance Index (CCPI) 2018 – Background and methodology note. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.climate-change-performance-index.org/the-climate-change-performance-index-2018-background-methodology.</u>

4.5 Just transition

For the **sources** used for the assessment of individual countries' policies on just transition, please refer to the Annex.

5. Financing the transition

5.1 Approaches to implementing the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure

The Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) was prompted by the G20's Financial Stability Board in 2015. High-profile from the outset, it was established by the Bank of England governor and the Financial Stability Board chair Mark Carney and is chaired by Michael Bloomberg. The Task Force was established from the recognition that climate risks are financial risks and that financial markets lack information about their exposure to such risks of sufficient quality and quantity to ensure appropriate allocation of capital. As such, the TCFD was asked to develop voluntary recommendations to guide consistent and useful climate-related disclosures. Its final recommendations were released in June 2017 where it was suggested that organisations disclose climate-relevant financial information in their mainstream annual filings according to national disclosure requirements. It structured its recommendations around four areas: governance, strategy, risk management and metrics and targets. Further, it recommended that the disclosures include forward-looking climate-related scenario analyses.

This indicator reports the degree to which national regulatory agencies of G20 members have made the recommendations of the TCFD relevant to their national contexts. In the case of the European Union (EU), it necessarily goes beyond this 'national' definition to the member countries. The analysis is a desktop review of TCFD-compliant initiatives across the G20 member states, complemented by stakeholder engagement to validate the relevant TCFD-compliant initiatives. Voluntary recommendations provided by industry associations and existing reporting schemes are noted to be out of the scope of the report, although recognized as important. In certain circumstances (for example Article 173 in France), the review considered existing regulations to be in scope if they closely aligned with the TCFD recommendations. All data is current as of 30 April 2018, though it is acknowledged that



this is rapidly changing policy space and policy movement in the intervening period could make the results out of date.

University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership (CISL) (2018). Sailing from different harbours: G20 approaches to implementing the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures. Cambridge, UK: the Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.cisl.cam.ac.uk/resources/publication-pdfs/cisl-tcfd-report-2018.pdf.</u>

5.2 Fossil fuel subsidies

The fossil fuel subsidies data presented in the Brown to Green Report is taken from the OECD/IEA joint fossil fuel subsidies database, released in 2018. The OECD inventory collates information on the amount of subsidies provided by governments in the form of tax breaks and budgetary support. The OECD data include country information for all G20 countries, except Argentina and Saudi Arabia. The estimates include support towards production and consumption of fossil fuel subsidies, as well as general services (supporting both production and consumption). The inventory is used in the Brown to Green Report because it provides a 'bottom-up' way of quantifying subsidies by collating government information on individual policy measures, and in this way, helps identify specific opportunities for reform. The results in this report are presented in US\$ billions and are taken from the latest year for which data is available, which is 2016. Trends in the time period 2007 to 2016 are also presented for countries. The original data provided by the OECD is in national currencies, and in the Brown to Green Report have been converted to common currency using exchange rates from United States Internal Revenue Service (IRS) website. The exception is Indonesia where currency exchange rates were taken from the Oanda average exchange rate tool, as rates were not available on the IRS website.

The subsidy data for Argentina and Saudi Arabia are from the IEA database because no OECD data are available. The IEA uses a different methodology for calculating subsidies, called the 'price-gap' approach. This approach compares average end-user prices paid by consumers with reference prices that correspond to the full cost of supply. It covers a sub-set of consumer subsidies, and does not include production subsidies. The differences between OECD and IEA methodology can result in significant variations in the calculated total amount of subsidies. The results are presented in US\$ billions and are taken from the latest year for which data is available on the database, which is 2016. Trends are also presented for the time period 2014-2016.

The Brown to Green Report also expresses country annual provisions of fossil fuel subsidies, captured by the OECD/IEA joint fossil fuel subsidies database, per unit of GDP. This allows some comparability between the G20 countries in the provision of fossil fuel subsidies. GDP values (in US\$) were taken from the World Bank's World Development Indicators.

It is worth noting that estimates on fossil fuel subsidies can differ across sources, therefore OECD may not necessarily reflect government perceptions on the level of fossil fuel subsidies. The OECD data is, however, useful in providing a comparable tool for G20 countries, from a methodological perspective. For example, the UK denies it provides any fossil fuel subsidies (under its own definition).¹ As another

¹ See: UK Parliament (2017a) 'Fossil Fuels: Tax Allowances: Written question - 63181', 6 February 2017. (http:// www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-question/ Commons/2017-02-06/63181/). UK Parliament (2017b) 'Fossil Fuels: Subsidies:Written question - 63284', 6 February 2017. (http://www.parliament.uk/ business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-



example, Indonesia's government reports US\$7.0 billion in fossil fuel subsidies in 2016 compared to the OECD's estimate of US\$8.8 billion the same year (using Oanda annual average exchange rates); due to different approaches in the different categorisation of fossil fuel subsidies versus electricity subsidies. It is worth noting that electricity subsidies themselves are not necessarily 'brown' expenditures, as decarbonisation of countries will require significant investments in electricity infrastructure.

OECD-IEA (2018). OECD-IEA Fossil Fuel Support and Other Analysis. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.oecd.org/site/tadffss/data/</u>

For Indonesia: **Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (2017).** Audit Report on Financial Report. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.bpk.go.id/assets/files/lkpp/2016/lkpp_2016_1495619163.pdf</u>

Exchange rates taken from IRS website at: <u>https://www.irs.gov/individuals/international-</u> <u>taxpayers/yearly-average-currency-exchange-rates</u> and <u>https://www.oanda.com/currency/average</u>

GDP values taken from the World Bank's World Development Indicators databank at: http://databank.worldbank.org/data/reports.aspx?source=world-development-indicators#

5.3 Carbon revenues

The carbon revenue data presented in the Brown to Green Report is taken from the Institute for Climate Economics (I4CE) carbon revenues data for G20 countries. The I4CE data collates information on the amount of carbon revenues generated by explicit carbon pricing schemes. This includes explicit carbon taxes and emissions trading schemes, both national and subnational in nature; but it does not include implicit schemes, that is the taxation of emissions through policies other than explicit carbon pricing policies (e.g. VAT on petrol). It is used in the Brown to Green Report because it provides a 'bottom-up' way of quantifying carbon revenues, and in this way, helps to identify the country's ambitions in carbon pricing now and in the future (including data on schemes currently under consideration but not yet implemented). The results are presented in US\$ billions and are taken from the latest year for which data is available, which is 2017. Trends for countries in the time period 2007 to 2017 are also presented.

The Brown to Green Report also expressed country annual provisions of carbon revenues, captured by I4CE, per unit of GDP. This allows for some comparability between the G20 countries in carbon revenues. GDP values (in US\$) were taken from the World Bank's World Development Indicators.

Country	Scheme
Brazil	Rio de Janerio; Sao Paulo
Canada	Alberta; British Columbia; Manitoba; Northwest Territories; Ontario (phased out mid-2018); Quebec; Nova Scotia; Saskatchewan; Newfoundland; New Brunswick; Prince Edward Island; Nunavut; Yukon
China	Beijing; Tianjin; Hubei; Chongqing; Guangdong; Shenzhen; Shanghai; Fujian; Sichuan

 Table 9: Subnational emissions trading schemes (planned or implemented) in the analysis

question/Commons/2017-02-06/63284/) UN (United Nations). (2015) 'Sustainable development knowledge platform'. New York: UN (https:// sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs).



Japan	Tokyo; Saitama
US	California; Oregon; Washington; RGGI member states (Connecticut, Delaware, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island, and Vermont)

A number of G20 countries had no carbon pricing schemes in place in the time period 2007 to 2017. Of these countries, Argentina, Brazil, South Africa and Turkey are considering or implementing explicit carbon revenue schemes from 2018 onwards, and these plans are outlined in the country reports. India, Indonesia, Russia, Australia and Saudi Arabia are, however, not currently planning to introduce any explicit carbon pricing schemes²; and, in order to provide further details their country data is supplemented with data on implicit carbon pricing from the OECD (2018) report on effective carbon rates. This was done to show that whilst not all countries have explicit schemes, they may still tax emissions.

I4CE (2018). Carbon pricing across the world: how to efficiently spend growing revenues? Retrieved from: <u>https://www.i4ce.org/download/carbon-pricing-across-the-world-how-to-efficiently-spend-growing-revenues/.</u>

OECD (2018). Effective carbon rates 2018. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.oecd.org/tax/effective-carbon-rates-2018-9789264305304-en.htm.</u>

5.4 National and international public finance in the power sector

The public finance to power data presented in the Brown to Green Report is taken from Oil Change International's Shift the Subsidies database (2017). The Shift the Subsidies database collates information on public finance to power by G20 public finance institutions, domestically and internationally, in the form of loans, grants and guarantees. The estimates include 'brown financing' described as financing to oil, gas, or coal production or exploration, for the transmission of fossil fuel power, or that provide incentives to fossil fuel development and investment more generally; and, 'green financing' described as financing to low carbon energy sources with a low impact on the local environment and populations, as well as energy efficiency and renewable energy projects (including small- and medium-scale hydro), and incentives for clean energy development and investment more generally. There are also estimates of 'grey financing': these include some clean or renewable sources (e.g. nuclear, large-scale hydro, biofuels and biomass) that can have significant impacts on the local environment and populations, and other electricity infrastructure projects that cannot necessarily be linked to brown or green power sources. The Oil Change International database is used in the Brown to Green Report because it provides a 'bottom-up' way of quantifying carbon revenues by collating information on individual projects, and in this way, helps identify specific opportunities for reform. The results presented are in US\$ billions (unless specified otherwise) and are taken from the latest years for which data is available, 2013 to 2015. As public financing is intermittent in nature, we use annual averages of brown, green and grey financing for the time period 2013 to 2015.

² It is also worth noting: whilst Australia has generated carbon revenues in the time period 2007-2017, the national carbon tax introduced in 2012 was phased out in 2015. Currently, there are plans to introduce another carbon pricing scheme, whether nationally or subnationally.



Country annual average provisions of public finance to brown, green and grey power projects, are also expressed as a proportion (%) of absolute public financing to power. The aim is to introduce some comparability between the G20 countries in public finance to brown, green and grey power.

There are some data caveats that are important to note. The data omits most finance delivered through financial intermediaries (because the volume of finance for specific energy activities ultimately delivered through those intermediaries is often unclear). For the same reason, the datasets omit significant volumes of MDB development policy finance. Given a lack of transparency, other important multilateral institutions in which G20 governments participate are not covered in this report, for example, the Development Bank of Latin America (CAF), Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank, New Development Bank, Islamic Development Bank, the sub-regional MDBs, and other non-MDB multilateral financial institutions. There is a general lack of transparency in the public finance institutions in Argentina, India, Indonesia, Mexico, Russia and Turkey, which is likely to lead to underestimates in public financing to power.

Country	Public finance institutions
Argentina	Ministry of Federal Planning; Ministry of Economy and Finances
Australia	Australia Renewable Energy Agency; Export Finance and Insurance Corporation; Clean Energy Finance Corporation; Government of New South Wales
Brazil	Brazilian Development Bank; Banco do Brasil; Superintendencia do Desenvolvimento do Nordeste; Banco do Nordeste do Brasil; Caixa Economica Federal; Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais.
Canada	Export Development Canada; Business Development Bank of Canada; Government of Canada; PPP Canada
China	The China Development Bank; Industrial and Commercial Bank of China; Export-Import Bank of China; Bank of China; Agricultural Bank of China; China Construction Bank; Bank of Communications; China Export and Credit Insurance Corporation; China CITIC Bank; Bank of Shanghai
Germany	Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW); IPEX-Bank; German Investment & Development Corporation; Euler Hermes
India	The State Bank of India; Bank of India; SBI Capital Markets; Export-Import Bank of India; India Infrastructure Finance Company; Power Finance Corporation; United Bank of India; Canara Bank; Syndicate Bank; State Bank of Mysore; Indian Bank, Union Bank of India; Indian Overseas Bank; Punjab National Bank; Bank of Baroda; Andhra Bank; Uco Bank; Allahabad Bank; IDBI Bank; Infrastructure Development Finance Company; Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency; Industrial Finance Corporation of India; Life Insurance Corporation of India; Oriental Bank of Commerce; State Bank of Hyderabad; State Bank of Travancore; Bank of Maharashtra; Central Bank of India; Dena Bank; Punjab & Sind Bank; State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur; State Bank of Patiala; Jammu & Kashmir Bank; Rural Electrification Corporation; Corporation Bank; Vijaya Bank
Indonesia	Indonesia Infrastructure Finance; Indonesia Infrastructure Guarantee Fund; Bank Mandiri; Sarana Multi Infrastruktur; Indonesian Eximbank; Government of Indonesia
Italy	Servizi Assicurativi del Commercio Estero; Cassa depositi e prestiti

Table 10: List of public finance institutions included in Oil Change International's Shift the Subsidies database



Japan	Development Bank of Japan; Japan Bank for International Co-operation; Japan International Cooperation Agency; Japan Oil Gas and Metals National Corporation; Nippon Export and Investment Insurance
Mexico	Banco Nacional de Obras y Servicios Publicos; Banco Nacional de Comercio Exterior; Nacional Financiera
Russia	Export Insurance Agency of Russia; Gazprombank, Government of the National Russian Federation; Russian Development Bank; Russian Direct Investment Fund; Russian National Wealth Fund; Sberbank and Vneshtorgbank
Saudi Arabia	Ministry of Finance; National Commercial Bank; Public Investment Fund; Saudi Fund for Development
South Africa	Development Bank of Southern Africa; Export Credit Insurance Corporation; Industrial Development Corporation of South Africa; Public Investment Corporation Limited
South Korea	Economic Development Cooperation Fund; Export-Import Bank of Korea; Korea Development Bank; Korea Finance Corporation; Korea International Cooperation Agency; Korea Trade Insurance Corporation
Turkey	Ziraat Bankasi, Halkbank; Vakifbank
UK	CDC Group; Department for Business Innovation and Skills; Department for International Development; Royal Bank of Scotland, UK Export Finance; UK Green Investment Bank
US	Export-Import Bank of the United States; Overseas Private Investment Corporation; US Department of Energy

Oil Change International (2017). Shift the subsidies database. Retrieved from:

http://priceofoil.org/shift-the-subsidies/.

5.5 Contributions through the major multilateral climate funds

The numbers published in the country profiles refer to the G20 annual average contributions via the multilateral climate funds in 2015 and 2016 to developing countries. It is generated by attributing the resources approved by each fund's governing board/committee for projects in 2015 and 2016 to individual donors based on the percentage of each funds resources that their pledges represented at the end of 2017. Data is included for the following climate funds: Adaptation for Smallholder Agriculture Programme; Adaptation Fund; Clean Technology Fund; Forest Carbon Partnership Facility; Forest Investment Program; Global Environment Facility (6th Replenishment, Climate Mitigation Focal Area only); Green Climate Fund; Least Developed Countries Fund; Partnership for Market Readiness; Pilot Program for Climate Resilience; Scaling-up Renewable Energy Program; Special Climate Change Fund and the UNREDD Programme (see Table 11).

The theme of the multilateral climate fund finance is dictated by the nature of the fund and can be split into adaptation, mitigation and to projects that deliver both mitigation and adaptation actions, so called 'cross-cutting'. It should be noted that such a thematic categorization can go against those of the countries that provide finance, e.g. while REDD+ was designed as a mitigation mechanism, many contributors consider adaptation benefits can also be delivered and may consider such projects cross-cutting. Unlike other funds, the GCF supports adaptation, mitigation and crosscutting objectives. For the GCF, the approved amounts in 2015 and 2016 are first broken down into the theme as determined



in the project design, and each countries contribution established as a proportion of this thematic amount.

The country reports include developing countries that have contributed to the multilateral climate funds. However, the summary report only ranks those countries that are signatories to Annex II of the UNFCCC and therefore formally obligated to provide climate finance under the Convention.

Figures for finance delivered through multilateral climate funds are sourced from Climate Funds Update, a joint ODI/Heinrich Boell Foundation database that tracks spending through all major climate funds.

	Fund	Objectives and structure
Mitigation focus	Global Environment Facility (Trust Fund 6)	The Global Environment Facility (GEF) aims to help developing countries and economies in transition to contribute to the overall objective of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) to both mitigate and adapt to climate change, while enabling sustainable economic development. The GEF is intended to cover the incremental costs of a measure to address climate change relative to a business as usual base line.
	Clean Technology Fund	The Clean Technology Fund (CTF), one of two multi-donor Trust Funds within the Climate Investment Funds (CIFs), promotes scaled-up financing for demonstration, deployment and transfer of low-carbon technologies with significant potential for long-term greenhouse gas emissions savings.
	Scaling-Up Renewable Energy Program	The Scaling-Up Renewable Energy Program in Low Income Countries (SREP) is a targeted program of the Strategic Climate Fund (SCF), which is one of two funds within the Climate Investment Funds (CIF) framework. The SREP was designed to demonstrate the economic, social and environmental viability of low carbon development pathways in the energy sector in low-income countries. It aims to help low-income countries use new economic opportunities to increase energy access through renewable energy use.
	Partnership for Market Readiness	The Partnership for Market Readiness (PMR) is a partnership of developed and developing countries administered by the World Bank, established to use market instruments to scale up mitigation efforts in middle income countries. Although initially geared towards promoting market readiness for the anticipated emergence of international carbon markets, this approach has become more flexible, providing grants and technical support for proposals for implementation of market tools that contribute to mitigation efforts.
	Forest Carbon Partnership Facility	The Forest Carbon Partnership Facility (FCPF) is a World Bank programme and consists of a Readiness Fund and a Carbon Fund. The FCPF was created to assist developing countries to reduce emissions from deforestation and forest degradation, enhance and conserve forest carbon stocks, and sustainably manage forests (REDD+).
	Forest Investment Programme	The Forest Investment Program (FIP) is a targeted program of the Strategic Climate Fund (SCF) within the Climate Investment Funds (CIF). The FIP supports developing countries' efforts to reduce deforestation and forest degradation (REDD) and promotes sustainable forest management that leads to emission reductions and the protection of carbon reservoirs. It achieves this by providing scaled-up financing to developing countries for readiness reforms and public and private investments, identified through national REDD readiness or equivalent strategies.
	UNREDD Programme	The UN-REDD Programme aims to generate the necessary flow of resources to significantly reduce global emissions from deforestation and forest degradation in developing countries. The immediate goal is to assess whether carefully structured payments and capacity support can create the incentives to ensure lasting, reliable

Table 11: Multilateral climate change funds



		and measurable emission reductions while maintaining and improving other
	Least	ecosystem services as well as the economic and social values that forests provide. The Least Developed Countries Fund (LDCF) was established to meet the adaptation
	Developed Countries Fund (2002)	needs of least developed countries (LDCs). Specifically, the LDCF has financed the preparation and implementation of National Adaptation Programs of Action (NAPAs) to identify priority adaptation actions for a country based on existing information.
	Special Climate Change Fund (2002)	The Special Climate Change Fund (SCCF) addresses the specific needs of developing countries under the UNFCCC. It covers the incremental costs of interventions to address climate change relative to a development baseline. Adaptation to climate change is the top priority of the SCCF, although it can also support technology transfer and its associated capacity building activities.
Adaptation focus	Adaptation Fund (2009)	The Adaptation Fund supports concrete adaptation projects and programmes in developing country Parties to the Kyoto Protocol, in an effort to reduce the adverse effects of climate change facing communities, countries and sectors. The Fund is financed through both governments and private donors, and from a 2% share of proceeds from Certified Emissions Reductions (CERs), issued under the Kyoto Protocol's Clean Development Mechanism (CDM).
	Adaptation for Smallholder Agriculture Programme	The Adaptation for Smallholder Agriculture Programme (ASAP) aims to channel climate and environmental finance to smallholder farmers, scale up climate change adaptation in rural development programmes and mainstream climate adaptation into the work of the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD).
	Pilot Programme for Climate Resilience	The Pilot Program for Climate Resilience (PPCR) is a targeted program of the Strategic Climate Fund (SCF), which is one of two funds within the Climate Investment Funds (CIF) framework. The PPCR aims to pilot and demonstrate ways in which climate risk and resilience may be integrated into core development planning and implementation by providing incentives for scaled-up action and initiating transformational change.
Cross cutting focus	Green Climate Fund	In the context of sustainable development, the Green Climate Fund aims to promote the paradigm shift towards low-emission and climate-resilient development pathways by providing support to developing countries to limit or reduce their greenhouse gas emissions and to adapt to the impacts of climate change, taking into account the needs of those developing countries particularly vulnerable to the adverse effects of climate change.

Climate Funds Update (2017). Climate Funds Update: The latest information on climate funds – data dashboard. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.climatefundsupdate.org/data.</u>

5.6 Bilateral climate finance contributions

The numbers published in the country profiles refer to bilateral, concessional, public climate finance delivered annually in the period 2015-16 to developing countries. It includes climate finance reported as committed directly by donors in their biennial reporting to the UNFCCC. Only bilateral data is taken from country reports and not the multilateral nor the core general contributions that countries report to the UNFCCC. This is done to avoid double counting with the multilateral climate change funds. Flows are measured at the point of commitment to specific climate projects or programmes.

Under its current administration, the US has not submitted a third biennial report to the UNFCCC. This reduces the bilateral figures for the G20 as a whole and hinders multi-year comparison. It is noted that a lack of reporting is not the same as the US providing \$0 million.



Germany includes mobilised finance through KfW in its reporting to the UNFCCC. The figure reported is therefore adjusted to make figures more comparable with other G20 countries. But this contribution is recognized. Germany's thematic breakdown is based on the full amount, including this KfW mobilised finance, however, since data availability is not sufficient to disaggregate by theme. Similarly, the EU reports also EIB figures in their reporting, and for comparison only the EU contributions are reported here, again while recognizing the important contribution.

The theme of the bilateral climate finance is dictated by the reporting of the country to the UNFCCC. It is classified as mitigation, adaptation, cross-cutting or other. The definitions of these categories vary by country (and institution), other, however, where used, generally refers to finance supporting REDD+ (see UNFCCC 2016, Annex D, Table D1).

The summary report presents data for only those countries that are listed as Annex II of the UNFCCC and are therefore formally obligated to provide climate finance. While not obligated, Russia has provided data in its reporting to the UNFCCC. It is also worth noting that there is bilateral finance provision that is not captured in common tabular format in biennial update reports and thus is not presented here. China for example, reports the provision of bilateral climate finance but not in a format or over a time period that allows comparison with other countries. South Korea, while a non-Annex II country, is an OECD DAC member and therefore reports bilateral climate finance to the OECD-DAC. In 2015 and 2016 it reported \$0.5 and \$0.3 million in climate-related development finance in 2015 and 2016 respectively.

Country Biennial Report submissions to the UNFCCC. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/transparency-and-reporting/reporting-and-review-under-the-convention/national-communications-and-biennial-reports-annex-i-parties/third-biennial-reports-annex-i.</u>



Annex

Sources: Policy evaluation

Argentina	
GHG emissions target	Konrad Adenauer Stiftung (2017). Climate Report 2017. Retrieved from:
for 2050 or beyond	http://www.kas.de/wf/en/33.49479/
and long-term low	
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Fundación de investigaciones economicas latinoamericanas (2017). Argentina.
	Retrieved from: <u>https://www.oecd.org/environment/cc/g20-</u>
	climate/collapsecontents/Fiel-argentina-growth-and-low-carbon-transition.pdf
	Foro sobre Cambio Climático (2017). Argentina presentó tres planes sectoriales
	para implementar su NDC en el marco de la COP23. Retrieved from:
	https://www.ambienteycomercio.org/argentina-presento-tres-planes-sectoriales-
	para-implementar-su-ndc-en-el-marco-de-la-cop23/
Transport	Ministry of the Environment and Sustainable Development (2017). Plan Nacional
	de Mitigación del sector transporte. Retrieved from:
	https://www.argentina.gob.ar/sites/default/files/anexo 9.06. plan de mitigacion
	del_sector_transporte_2017.pdf
Buildings	International Energy Agency (2015). Program for Rational and Efficient Use of
	Energy in Public Buildings. Retrieved from:
	https://www.iea.org/policiesandmeasures/pams/argentina
Industry	Solar edge (2015). Argentina passes renewable energy law: 25% by 2025. Retrieved
	from: https://www.pv-magazine.com/2015/10/01/argentina-passes-renewable-
	energy-law-20-by-2025_100021338/
Forests	Foro sobre Cambio Climático (2017). Argentina presentó tres planes sectoriales
	para implementar su NDC en el marco de la COP23. Retrieved from:
	https://www.ambienteycomercio.org/argentina-presento-tres-planes-sectoriales-
	para-implementar-su-ndc-en-el-marco-de-la-cop23/
Australia	
GHG emissions target	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from:
for 2050 or beyond	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/
and long-term low	
emissions	
development strategy	
	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from:
development strategy	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/
development strategy	
development strategy Power	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/
development strategy Power	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from:
development strategy Power Transport	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/
development strategy Power Transport	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved
development strategy Power Transport Buildings	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018
development strategy Power Transport	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update-September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from:
development strategy Power Transport Buildings	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update-September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2
development strategy Power Transport Buildings Industry	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2 017.pdf
development strategy Power Transport Buildings	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2 017.pdf Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from:
development strategy Power Transport Buildings Industry Forests	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2 017.pdf
development strategy Power Transport Buildings Industry Forests Brazil	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2 017.pdf Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/
development strategy Power Transport Buildings Industry Forests	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from: https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/australia/ Australian Buildings Code Board (2018). Standards Australia Update. Retrieved from: https://www.abcb.gov.au/Connect/Articles/Standards-Australia-update- September-2018 International Energy Agency (2017). Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/publications/freepublications/publication/Energy_Efficiency_2 017.pdf Climate Action Tracker (2018). Australia. Retrieved from:



emissions	http://m.bmu.de/fileadmin/Daten BMU/Download PDF/Klimaschutz/klimakonsult
development strategy	ation deutschland brasilien en bf.pdf
Power	Global Data (2017). Brazil Renewable Energy Policy Handbook 2017. Retrieved
	from: http://www.arena-international.com/Uploads/2017/11/27/r/c/j/Free-Brazil-
	Renewable-Energy-Policy-Handbook-2017.pdf
	Reuters (2016). UPDATE 1-Brazil development bank scraps financing for coal-fired
	plants. Retrieved from:
	https://af.reuters.com/article/commoditiesNews/idAFL2N1C913N
	Greenmatters (2017). Brazil's Ambitious New 10-Year Energy Expansion Plan
	Focuses on Solar Power. Retrieved from:
	https://www.greenmatters.com/news/2017/07/11/VhGQH/brazil-13-gigawatts-
	solar-energy-10-years
Transport	Global Fleet (2018). Brazil's Rota 2030 pushing safer, more sustainable cars.
Παποροιτ	Retrieved from:
	https://www.globalfleet.com/en/safety-environment/latin-
	america/features/brazils-rota-2030-pushing-safer-more-sustainable-cars Anfavea (September, 2018). Carta de Anfavea. Retrieved from:
	http://www.anfavea.com.br/cartas/carta388.pdf
	Joseph H. Jr., ANFAVEA Energy & Environment Affairs Commission (2013). Flex
	Fuel Vehicles in Brazil. Retrieved from:
	http://www.globalbioenergy.org/fileadmin/user_upload/gbep/docs/2013_events/G
	BEP Bioenergy Week Brasilia 18-23 March 2013/4.5 JOSEPH.pdf
Buildings	New Climate. Good practice menu and its coverage. Retrieved from:
	http://climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php?title=Good_practice_menu_and_its_co
	verage
Industry	New Climate. Good practice menu and its coverage. Retrieved from:
	http://climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php?title=Good_practice_menu_and_its_co
	verage
Forests	Carbon Brief (2018). The Carbon brief Profile: Brazil. Retrieved from:
	https://www.carbonbrief.org/the-carbon-brief-profile-brazil.
	Reuters (2017). Brazil launches database to fight illegal Amazon logging. Retrieved
	from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-brazil-environment-amazon-
	idUSKBN16E2O9
	NRDC (2017). The Road from Paris: Brazil's progress towards its climate pledge.
	Retrieved from: <u>https://assets.nrdc.org/sites/default/files/paris-climate-agreement-</u>
	progress-2017-brazil-ib.pdf
Canada	
GHG emissions target	Environment and Climate Change Canada (2016). Canada's mid-century long-term
for 2050 or beyond	low greenhouse gas development strategy. retrieved from:
and long-term low	https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/Canada%27s%20Mid-
emissions	Century%20Long-Term%20Low-GHG%20Strategy.pdf
development strategy	Environment and Climate Change Canada (2016). Pan-Canadian Framework on
	Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from:
	http://publications.gc.ca/collections/collection 2017/eccc/En4-294-2016-eng.pdf
	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Canada. Retrieved from:
	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/canada/
Power	Environment and Climate Change Canada (2016). Pan-Canadian Framework on
Power	Environment and Climate Change Canada (2016). Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from:
Power	Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from:
	Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from: http://publications.gc.ca/collections/collection_2017/eccc/En4-294-2016-eng.pdf
Power Transport	Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from: http://publications.gc.ca/collections/collection_2017/eccc/En4-294-2016-eng.pdf Government of Canada (2017). Government of Canada to develop a national Zero-
	Clean growth and Climate Change. Retrieved from: http://publications.gc.ca/collections/collection_2017/eccc/En4-294-2016-eng.pdf



	emissionsvehiclestrat.html
	Environment and Climate Change Canada (2018). Canada's clean fuel standard.
	Retrieved from:
	https://ec.europa.eu/energy/sites/ener/files/documents/11_lorri_thompson.pdf
	OECD (2017). OECD Environmental Performance Reviews - Canada. Retrieved from:
	https://read.oecd-ilibrary.org/environment/oecd-environmental-performance-
	reviews-canada-2017_9789264279612-en#page1
Buildings	Natural Resource Canada (2017). Build Smart - Canada's Buildings Strategy.
	Retrieved from:
	https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/sites/www.nrcan.gc.ca/files/emmc/pdf/Building_Smart_e
	<u>n.pdf</u>
Industry	Natural Resources Canada. Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHGs).
	Retrieved from: https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy/facts/energy-ghgs/20063
	Energy and Mines Ministers' Conference (2015). Annex B - Industrial Energy
	Efficiency Programs Available Across Canada. Retrieved from:
	https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/sites/www.nrcan.gc.ca/files/www/pdf/publications/emmc
	/15-0140%20EMMC-Ind%20EE-Annex-B-e.pdf
Forests	NRDC (2017). Clearcutting in Canada's Boreal Forest Unleashes Unreported Carbon
	Dioxide Emissions, Worsening Climate Change. Retrieved from:
	https://www.nrdc.org/media/2017/171031
	Climate Action Tracker (2016). Canada. Retrieved from:
	https://climateactiontracker.org/media/documents/2018/4/CAT_2016-11-
	02_CountryAssessment_Canada.pdf
China:	
GHG emissions target	Pathway Platform (2018): China's Mid-century Strategy for Climate Mitigation:
for 2050 or beyond	Framing and Methodologies. <u>https://www.2050pathways.org/chinas-mid-century-</u>
and long-term low	strategy-for-climate-mitigation-framing-and-methodologies/
emissions	
development strategy	Climate Action (2010) China will drive forward represented a grant for many formation to
Power	Climate Action (2018) . China will drive forward renewable energy for many years to come. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.climateaction.org/news/china-will-drive-</u>
	forward-renewable-energy-for-many-years-to-come
	PV Magazine (2017) . China sets lower solar FIT rates for 2018. Retrieved from:
	https://www.pv-magazine.com/2017/12/22/china-sets-lower-solar-fit-rates-for-
	2018/
	Climate News Network (2018) . China's falling emissions raise climate hopes.
	Retrieved from: <u>https://climatenewsnetwork.net/chinas-falling-emissions-raise-</u>
	climate-hopes/
	China Daily (2018). China to cap coal consumption at 4.1 billion tons by 2020.
	Retrieved from: http://www.chinadaily.com.cn/business/2017-
	01/18/content 27988531.htm
	Eco-Business (2018). China is building coal power again. Retrieved from:
	https://www.eco-business.com/news/china-is-building-coal-power-again/
	Reuters (2017). China to boost non-fossil fuel use to 20 percent by 2030: state
	planner. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.reuters.com/article/us-china-energy/china-</u>
	to-boost-non-fossil-fuel-use-to-20-percent-by-2030-state-planner-idUSKBN17R0QK
	Eco-Business (2018). China releases 2020 action plan for air pollution. Retrieved
	from: https://www.eco-business.com/news/china-releases-2020-action-plan-for-
	air-pollution/
Transport	Carbon Brief (2018). Q&A: How will China's new carbon trading scheme work?
	Retrieved from: <u>https://www.carbonbrief.org/qa-how-will-chinas-new-carbon-</u>
	trading-scheme-work
	Clean Technica (2018). Chinese Electric Vehicle Subsidy Changes In 2018 — The



	Details. Retrieved from: https://cleantechnica.com/2018/01/06/chinese-electric-
Duildin e	vehicle-subsidy-changes-2018-details/
Buildings	International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation. China. Retrieved from: http://g20-energy-efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/buildings-china.html
	World Economic Forum (2017). China's clean green buildings of the future.
	Retrieved from: https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2017/06/china-clean-green-
	buildings-future/
	Lexis Nexis. MOHURD Issues 13th Five-Year Plan for the Development of Building
	Energy Efficiency and Green Buildings. Retrieved from:
	https://hk.lexiscn.com/latest_message.php?id=212039.
	Euractiv (2017). Energy efficiency and growth, the Chinese way. Retrieved from:
	https://www.euractiv.com/section/energy/opinion/energy-efficiency-and-growth-
	the-chinese-way/
	The Network for Climate and Energy Information (2016). Building Energy Efficiency
	in China: Policies and Markets. Retrieved from:
	http://www.chinafaqs.org/files/chinainfo/Building%20Energy%20Efficiency%20Fact
	%20Sheet 0.pdf
Industry	Institute for Industrial Productivity. CN-3b: Top-10.000 Energy-Consuming
,	Enterprises Program. Retrieved from: <u>http://iepd.iipnetwork.org/policy/top-10000-</u>
	energy-consuming-enterprises-program
Forests	Reuters (2018). China to create new forests covering area size of Ireland: China
	Daily. Retrieved from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-china-environment-
	forest/china-to-create-new-forests-covering-area-size-of-ireland-china-daily-
	idUSKBN1EU02L.
EU	
GHG emissions target	European Council (2018). European Council meeting (22 March 2018) - Conclusions.
for 2050 or beyond	Retrieved from: http://www.consilium.europa.eu/media/33457/22-euco-final-
and long-term low	conclusions-en.pdf
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Eurostat (2018). Share of energy from renewable sources. Retrieved from:
	http://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=nrg ind 335a⟨=en
	European Parliament and the Council of the European Union (2018). Directive (EU)
	2018/410 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 March 2018
	Amending Directive 2003/87/EC to Enhance Cost-Effective Emission Reductions and
	Low-Carbon Investments, and Decision (EU) 2015/1814. Retrieved from:
	https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-
	<pre>content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=CELEX:32018L0410&from=EN</pre>
	Agora Energiewende and Sandbag (2018). The European Power Sector in 2017.
	State of Affair and Review of Current Developments. Retrieved from:
	https://sandbag.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/EU-power-sector-report-
	<u>2017.pdf</u>
	EEX (2018). European Emission Allowances Auction (EUA) Global Environmental
	Exchange. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.eex.com/en/market-data/environmental-</u>
	markets/spot-market/european-emission-allowances#!/2018/10/02
Transport	European Commission. Proposal for post -2020 CO2 targets for cars and vans.
	Retrieved from:
	https://ec.europa.eu/clima/policies/transport/vehicles/proposal_en#tab-0-0
	Transport & Environment (2018). European new car CO2 emissions are rising
	because of heavier, bigger diesels. Retrieved from:
	https://www.transportenvironment.org/press/european-new-car-co2-emissions-
	are-rising-because-heavier-bigger-diesels
Buildings	European Parliament and the Council of the European Union (2018). Directive (EU)
	2018/844 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 May 2018 Amending



Industry Forests	Directive 2010/31/EU on the Energy Performance of Buildings and Directive 2012/27/EU on Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from: https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal- content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv%3AOJ.L2018.156.01.0075.01.ENG European Parliament and the Council of the European Union (2010). Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 November 2010 on Industrial Emissions (Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control) (Recast). Retrieved from: https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal- content/en/TXT/?uri=CELEX:32010L0075 European Parliament and the Council of the European Union (2018). Regulation (EU) 2018/841 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 May 2018 on
	the Inclusion of Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals from Land Use, Land Use Change and Forestry in the 2030 Climate and Energy Framework. Retrieved from: <u>https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-</u> <u>content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:OJ.L .2018.156.01.0001.01.ENG</u>
France	
GHG emissions target for 2050 or beyond and long-term low emissions development strategy	French Ministry of Ecology, Energy, Sustainable Development and Spatial Planning. Stratégie nationale bas-carbone - Summary for decision makers. Retrieved from: http://unfccc.int/files/focus/long- term_strategies/application/pdf/national_low_carbon_strategy_en.pdf French Ministry of Ecology, Energy, Sustainable Development and Spatial Planning (2017). Plan Climat. Retrieved from: https://www.ecologique- solidaire.gouv.fr/sites/default/files/2017.07.06%20-%20Plan%20Climat_0.pdf
Power	Climate Action (2018). France plans to double wind power capacity within 5 years. Retrieved from: http://www.climateaction.org/news/france-plans-to-double-wind- power-capacity-within-five-years Climate Action (2018). France to shut down all its coal plants two years early. Retrieved from: http://www.climateactionprogramme.org/news/france-to-shut- down-all-its-coal-plants-two-years-early
Transport	The Guardian (2017). France to ban sales of petrol and diesel cars by 2040.Retrieved from: https://www.theguardian.com/business/2017/jul/06/france-ban-petrol-diesel-cars-2040-emmanuel-macron-volvo - https://www.euki.de/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/fact-sheet-bonus-malus-vehicle-incentive-system-fr.pdf Ecofys (2018). Bonus-Malus Vehicle Incentive System in France - Fact sheet.Retrieved from: https://www.euki.de/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/fact-sheet-bonus-malus-vehicle-incentive-system-fr.pdf Electrive.net (2018). Frankreich: Zukunftsvertrag mit Autobauern & Zuliefern.Retrieved from: https://www.electrive.net/2018/05/25/frankreich-schliesst-vertrag-mit-autobauern-zulieferen
Buildings	European Commission. Nearly zero-energy buildings. Retrieved from: https://ec.europa.eu/energy/en/topics/energy-efficiency/buildings/nearly-zero- energy-buildings Reuters (2018). France launches plan to renovate homes and buildings to curb energy waste. Retrieved from: <a href="https://www.reuters.com/article/us-france-
energy/france-launches-plan-to-renovate-homes-and-buildings-to-curb-energy-
waste-idUSKBN1HX1GH">https://www.reuters.com/article/us-france- energy/france-launches-plan-to-renovate-homes-and-buildings-to-curb-energy- waste-idUSKBN1HX1GH Reuters (2018). Big cities vow to make buildings carbon neutral by 2050. Retrieved from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-global-cities-climatechange/big-cities- yow-to-make-buildings-carbon-neutral-by-2050-idUSKCN1L824P
Industry	New Climate. France. Retrieved from: http://www.climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php?title=Country:France



Forests	The London School of Economics and Political Science and the Graham Research
	Institute on Climate Change and the Environment (2014). Farming, forest and
	alimentation Framework Law No.2014-1170. Retrieved from:
	http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/law/farming-forest-and-alimentation-
	framework-law-no-2014-1170/
Germany	
GHG emissions target	Federal Ministry for the Environment (2016). Klimaschutzplan 2050. Retrieved
for 2050 or beyond	from:
and long-term low	https://www.bmu.de/fileadmin/Daten_BMU/Download_PDF/Klimaschutz/klimasch
emissions	utzplan 2050 bf.pdf
development strategy	Federal Government of Germany (2017). Koalitionsvertrag zwischen CDU, CSU und
	SPD. Retrieved from:
	https://www.bundesregierung.de/Content/DE/ Anlagen/2018/03/2018-03-14-
	koalitionsvertrag.pdf? blob=publicationFile&v=6
Power	Federal Ministry for the Environment (2016). Klimaschutzplan 2050. Retrieved
1 ower	from:
	https://www.bmu.de/fileadmin/Daten_BMU/Download_PDF/Klimaschutz/klimasch
	utzplan 2050 bf.pdf
	Norton Rose Fulbright. German Renewable Energy Act (EEG 2017) - what should
	we know? Retrieved from:
	http://www.nortonrosefulbright.com/wissen/publications/147964/german-
	renewable-energy-act-2017-eeg-2017-what-you-should-know
	Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy (2018). Bundeskabinett setzt
	Kommission "Wachstum, Strukturwandel und Beschäftigung" ein. Retrieved from:
	https://www.bmwi.de/Redaktion/DE/Pressemitteilungen/2018/20180606-
	bundeskabinett-setzt-kommission-wachstum-strukturwandel-und-beschaeftigung-
	ein.html
	Clean Energy Wire (2018). Germany's greenhouse gas emissions and climate
	targets. Retrieved from: https://www.cleanenergywire.org/factsheets/germanys-
	greenhouse-gas-emissions-and-climate-targets
Transport	Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy. Electric mobility in Germany.
nansport	Retrieved from: https://www.bmwi.de/Redaktion/EN/Dossier/electric-
	mobility.html.
	Road Traffic Technology (2018). European countries banning fossil fuel cars and
	switching to electric. Retrieved from: https://www.roadtraffic-
	technology.com/features/european-countries-banning-fossil-fuel-cars/
Buildings	Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy (2018). Energy Efficiency Strategy
Dullulligs	for Buildings. Retrieved from:
	https://www.bmwi.de/Redaktion/EN/Artikel/Energy/energy-efficiency-strategy-for-
	buildings.html
	Federal Government of Germany (2017). Koalitionsvertrag zwischen CDU, CSU und
	SPD. Retrieved from:
	https://www.bundesregierung.de/Content/DE/ Anlagen/2018/03/2018-03-14-
	koalitionsvertrag.pdf? blob=publicationFile&v=6
	Deutsche Energie Agentur (2018). dena-Gebäudereport Kompakt 2018. Retrieved
	from:
	https://shop.dena.de/fileadmin/denashop/media/Downloads_Dateien/bau/9254_G
	ebaeudereport dena kompakt 2018.pdf
Industry	
Industry	International Energy Agency. Energy Efficiency - Germany. Retrieved from:
Foracta	https://www.iea.org/policiesandmeasures/energyefficiency/?country=Germany
Forests	Federal Ministry for the Environment (2016). Klimaschutzplan 2050. Retrieved
	from:
	https://www.bmu.de/fileadmin/Daten_BMU/Download_PDF/Klimaschutz/klimasch
	utzplan_2050_bf.pdf



India	
GHG emissions target	International Journal of Science and Research (IJSR) (2013). India's Development
for 2050 or beyond	Strategy under the Low Carbon Economy. Retrieved from:
and long-term low	https://www.ijsr.net/archive/v4i4/SUB153206.pdf
emissions	Navroz K Dubash et al (2018). Environmental Research Letters 13074018 -
development strategy	India's energy and emissions future: an interpretive analysis of model scenarios.
	Retrieved from: http://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/1748-9326/aacc74/pdf
Power	Climate Home News (2018). India's power minister says the country can smash its
	2022 renewable power goal. Will it happen? Retrieved from:
	http://www.climatechangenews.com/2018/06/13/india-says-will-smash-2022-
	renewable-power-goal-will-happen/
	Forbes (2018). India Coal Power Is About To Crash: 65% Of Existing Coal Costs More
	Than New Wind And Solar. Retrieved from:
	https://www.forbes.com/sites/energyinnovation/2018/01/30/india-coal-power-is-
	about-to-crash-65-of-existing-coal-costs-more-than-new-wind-and-
	solar/#365d3fe74c0f
Transport	Climate Home News (2017). India's electric vehicle revolution faces major hurdles.
	Retrieved from: http://www.climatechangenews.com/2017/07/28/indias-electric-
	vehicle-revolution-faces-major-hurdles/
	Power Technology (2018). Electric vehicle market gaining momentum in India.
	Retrieved from: <u>https://www.power-technology.com/comment/electric-vehicle-</u>
	market-gaining-momentum-india/
	Express Drives (2018). Government finally wakes up: Sets a realistic goal of 30%
	electric vehicles by 2030 from existing 100% target. Retrieved from:
	https://www.financialexpress.com/auto/car-news/government-finally-wakes-up-
	sets-a-realistic-goal-of-30-electric-vehicles-by-2030-from-existing-100-
	target/1091075/
	Qaurtz India (2018). India's fixation with cheap cars is stalling its electric vehicles
	dream. Retrieved from: <u>https://qz.com/india/1323337/indias-electric-vehicles-</u>
	dream-will-stall-over-its-love-for-cheap-cars/
Buildings	World Resource Institute (2017). India's move to make buildings efficient. Retrieved
	from: https://www.wri.org/blog/2017/11/indias-move-make-buildings-efficient
	Global Building Performance Network. India. Retrieved from:
	http://www.gbpn.org/activities/india
Industry	Ministry of Power of the Government of India. Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from:
	https://powermin.nic.in/en/content/energy-efficiency
Forests	Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change (2012). Draft National Forest
	Policy. Retrieved from:
	http://www.moef.nic.in/sites/default/files/Draft%20National%20Forest%20Policy%
	<u>2C%202018.pdf</u>
	The Hindu (2018). India's forest, tree cover up by 1% in 2 years: Centre. Retrieved
	from: <u>https://www.thehindu.com/sci-tech/energy-and-environment/indias-forest-</u>
	tree-cover-up-by-1-in-2-years-centre/article22732640.ece
Indonesia	
GHG emissions target	Ministry of National Development Planning/ National Development Planning
for 2050 or beyond	Agency. National Policy Direction and Strategy in National Medium-Term planning
and long-term low	2025-2019. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.bappenas.go.id/id/data-dan-informasi-</u>
emissions	utama/dokumen-perencanaan-dan-pelaksanaan/dokumen-rencana-pembangunan-
development strategy	nasional/rpjp-2005-2025/rpjmn-2015-2019/
	New Naratif (2018). Indonesia's Can't -Do Cliamte Plan. Retrieved from:
	https://newnaratif.com/journalism/indonesias-cant-climate-plan/
Power	Government of the Republic of Indonesia (2014). Government Regulation on
	National Energy Policy (Number 79). Retrieved from: http://ditjenpp.kemenkumham.go.id/arsip/terjemahan/2.pdf.



	Minister of Freezeward Mineral Decourses of the Depublic of Indonesia (2017)
	Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources of the Republic of Indonesia (2017).
	Regulation on Utilization of Renewable Energy Sources for Power Supply. Retrieved
	from: <u>http://ditjenpp.kemenkumham.go.id/arsip/terjemahan/41.pdf</u>
	Kementerian Energi dan Sumber Daya Mineral (2018).
	PLN Electricity Supply Business Plan 2018-2027. Retrieved from:
	https://www.esdm.go.id/assets/media/content/content-ringkasan-ruptl-2018-
	<u>2027.pdf</u>
	International Institute for Sustainable Development (2018). Missing the 23 per
	cent target: Roadblocks to the development of renewable energy in Indonesia.
	Retrieved from: https://www.iisd.org/sites/default/files/publications/roadblocks-
	indonesia-renewable-energy.pdf.
Transport	Transport Policy. Indonesia: Light-Duty: Emissions. Retrieved from:
·	https://www.transportpolicy.net/standard/indonesia-light-duty-
	emissions/?title=indonesia: light-duty: emissions
Buildings	New Climate. Good practice menu and its coverage. Retrieved from:
Dullulligs	http://climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/Good practice menu and its coverage
	nttp.//timatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/Good_practice_mend_and_its_coverag
Industry	Republic of Indonesia (2016). UNIDO-Indonesia country programme 2016-2020.
	Retrieved from:
	https://www.unido.org/sites/default/files/2016-05/CP_Indonesia_2016-
	2020 FINAL 16-May-2016 Final Signature block Mol 0.pdf
Forests	Yale Environment (2018). Despite Government Pledges, Ravaging of Indonesia's
	Forests continues. Retrieved from: https://e360.yale.edu/features/despite-
	government-pledges-ravaging-of-indonesias-forests-continues
	World Resource Institute (2017). Drivers of Deforestation in Indonesia, Inside and
	Outside Concessions Areas. Retrieved from:
	https://www.wri.org/blog/2017/07/drivers-deforestation-indonesia-inside-and-
	outside-concessions-areas.
	Reuters (2017). Indonesia president approves two-year extension of forest
	moratorium. Retrieved from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-indonesia-
	environment-forests/indonesia-president-approves-two-year-extension-of-forest-
	moratorium-idUSKBN18K0CV
	Mongabay (2018). Indonesian president signs 3-year freeze on new oil palm
	licenses. Retrieved from: https://news.mongabay.com/2018/09/indonesian-
	president-signs-3-year-freeze-on-new-oil-palm-licenses/
	Asia Times (2018). Hesitant praise for three-year ban on new oil palm licenses.
	Retrieved from: https://www.iisd.org/sites/default/files/publications/roadblocks-
	indonesia-renewable-energy.pdf.
Italy	
	Ministry of Economic Development and Ministry for the Environment, Land and
GHG emissions target	
for 2050 or beyond	Sea (2017). Italy's National Energy Strategy 2017. Retrieved from:
and long-term low	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG
emissions	<u>SEN.PDF</u>
development strategy	
Power	Ministry of Economic Development and Ministry for the Environment, Land and
	Sea (2017). Italy's National Energy Strategy 2017. Retrieved from:
	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG
	SEN.PDF
	Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea (2017). Seventh National
	Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea (2017). Seventh National
	Communication under the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change - Italy.
	Communication under the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change - Italy. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/258913076_Italy-</u>
	Communication under the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change - Italy. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/258913076_Italy-NC7-2-Italy%20Seventh%20National%20Communication%20Final.pdf</u>
Transport	Communication under the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change - Italy. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/258913076_Italy-</u>



	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG
	_SEN.PDF
	Electrive.net (2018). Italien strebt eine Million Elektroautos bis 2022 an. Retrieved
	from: <u>https://www.electrive.net/2018/06/25/italien-strebt-eine-million-</u> elektroautos-bis-2022-an/
Buildings	Government of the Italian Republic (2017). Italy - Third Biennial report. Retrieved
Bulluings	from:
	http://unfccc.int/files/national reports/biennial reports and iar/submitted bienni
	al reports/application/pdf/132867045 italy-br3-1-br3 2017 italy.pdf
	Ministry of Economic Development and Ministry for the Environment, Land and
	Sea (2017). Italy's National Energy Strategy 2017. Retrieved from:
	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG
	SEN.PDF
Industry	Government of the Italian Republic (2017). Italy - Third Biennial report. Retrieved
maastry	from:
	http://unfccc.int/files/national reports/biennial reports and iar/submitted bienni
	al reports/application/pdf/132867045 italy-br3-1-br3 2017 italy.pdf
	Ministry of Economic Development and Ministry for the Environment, Land and
	Sea (2017). Italy's National Energy Strategy 2017. Retrieved from:
	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG
	SEN.PDF
Forests	Government of the Italian Republic (2018). Gazetta Ufficiale - Decreto Legislativo,
	n.34. Retrieved from:
	http://www.gazzettaufficiale.it/eli/id/2018/04/20/18G00060/sg
Japan	
GHG emissions target	Ministry of the Environment (2016). Overview of the Plan for the Global Warming
for 2050 or beyond	Countermeasures. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.env.go.jp/press/files/en/676.pdf</u>
and long-term low	
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Government of Japan (2018). Strategic Energy Plan. Retrieved from:
	http://www.meti.go.jp/english/press/2018/pdf/0703_002c.pdf
Transport	Government of Japan. Long-term goal and strategy of Japan's Automotive Industry
	for Tackling Global Climate Change. Retrieved from:
	http://www.meti.go.jp/press/2018/08/20180831007/20180831007-2.pdf
Buildings	Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (2015). METI compiles ZEG roadmap.
	Retrieved from: <u>http://www.meti.go.jp/english/press/2015/1217_01.html</u>
Industry	Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (2009). Introduction of Benchmarks under
	the Energy Efficiency Law in Japan. Retrieved from:
	https://www.ceps.eu/sites/default/files/task force/2009/07/6AkihiroMATSUTA.pdf
Forests	Japan Forest Information Review (2018). The forest environmental tax in Japan will
	start in FY 2019. Retrieved from:
	http://jsfmf.net/english/policy/Forest_ETax/Forest_Etax0.html
Mexico	
GHG emissions target	Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (SEMARNAT) and National
for 2050 or beyond	Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (INECC) (2016). Mexico's Climate Change
and long-term low	Mid-Century Strategy. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/files/focus/long-</u>
emissions	term_strategies/application/pdf/mexico_mcs_final_cop22nov16_red.pdf
development strategy	London School of Economics and Political Science and Graham Research Institute
	on Climate Change and the Environment (2018). Mexico - General Law on Climate
	Change. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/law/general-law-</u>
	on-climate-change/ New Climate. General Law on Climate Change Mexico 2012. Retrieved from:
	I New Limate (seneral law on Climate Change Mexico 2012) Retrieved from



	http://www.climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/General Law on Climate Chang
	<u>e Mexico 2012</u>
Power	Bloomberg (2017). México prevé que mitad de electricidad sea de renovables en 2050. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.bloomberg.com/latam/blog/mexico-preve-que-mitad-de-electricidad-sea-de-renovables-en-2050/</u>
	Ministry of Energy of the United Mexican States (2016). México cumplirá con su
	meta del 35% de generación eléctrica con energías limpias en 2024: Consejo
	Consultivo para la Transición Energética. Retrieved from:
	https://www.gob.mx/sener/prensa/mexico-cumplira-con-su-meta-del-35-de- generacion-electrica-con-energias-limpias-en-2024-consejo-consultivo-para-la-
	transicion-energetica
	Ministry of Parliamentary Services of the United Mexican States (2015). Ley de
	transición energética. Retrieved from:
	http://www.diputados.gob.mx/LeyesBiblio/pdf/LTE.pdf
	United Nations Climate Change (2017) . More than 20 Countries Launch Global Alliance to Phase Out Coal. Retrieved from: https://unfccc.int/news/more-than-20-
	countries-launch-global-alliance-to-phase-out-coal
	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Mexico - Country Summary. Retrieved from:
	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/mexico/
Transport	New Climate. Light Duty Vehicles CO2 Emissions Standards Mexico 2013. Retrieved
Transport	from:
	http://www.climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/Light Duty Vehicles CO2 Emissi
	ons Standards Mexico 2013
	International Council on Clean Transportation (2013). Mexico light-duty vehicle
	CO2 and fuel economy standards. Retrieved from:
	https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCTupdate Mexico LDVst
	andards july2013.pdf
	Ministry of the Interior (2013). Norma Oficial Mexicana (NOM-163-SEMARNAT-
	ENER-SCFI-2013). Retrieved from:
	http://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5303391&fecha=21/06/2013
	Government of the State of Mexico. Automóviles electrónicos. Retrieved from:
	http://dgsei.edomex.gob.mx/tecnotips/automoviles_electrico
Buildings	World Resources Institute. Mexico and Mexico City Introduce Energy Efficiency
	Standards for Buildings. Retrieved from:
	https://www.wri.org/our-work/top-outcome/mexico-and-mexico-city-introduce-
	energy-efficiency-standards-buildings
	Low Energy Building Network (2016). Mexico Conservation Code for Buildings. Retrieved from: https://esci-ksp.org/project/mexico-conservation-code-for-
	buildings/
	New Climate. Programme for Financing of Electric Energy Saving (PFAEE) Mexico
	2002. Retrieved from:
	http://www.climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/Programme_for_Financing_of_El
	ectric Energy Saving (PFAEE) Mexico 2002
Industry	New Climate. Mexico. Retrieved from:
,	http://www.climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php?title=Country:Mexico.
	Ministry of Energy of the United Mexican States (2017). Hoja de ruta en materia de
	eficiencia energética. Retrieved from:
	https://www.gob.mx/cms/uploads/attachment/file/313765/HojadeRutadeEficiencia
	EnergeticavOdeB24012017SCC 07112017 VF.pdf
Forests	Government of the United Mexican States. Intended Nationally Determined
	Contributions. Retrieved from:
	http://www4.unfccc.int/submissions/INDC/Published%20Documents/Mexico/1/ME
	XICO%20INDC%2003.30.2015.pdf
Russia	



GHG emissions target	Climate Action Tracker (2018). Russian Federation. Retrieved from:
for 2050 or beyond	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/russian-federation/pledges-and-targets/
and long-term low	
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Thomson Reuters Practical Law (2018). Electricity regulation in the Russian
	Federation: Overview. Retrieved from:
	https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com/6-527-
	2969?transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&firstPage=true∁=pluk
	<u>&bhcp=1</u>
	Renewables Now (2017). Russia devising post-2024 renewables plan. Retrieved
	from: https://renewablesnow.com/news/russia-devising-post-2024-renewables-
	plan-584687/
	Government of Russia?? (2017). Government decides to support renewable energy
	after 2024 - Dvorkovich. Retrieved from: <u>https://rawi.ru/en/government-decides-</u>
	to-support-renewable-energy-after-2024-dvorkovich/
	Government of the Russian Federation (2017). ГЕНЕРАЛЬНАЯ СХЕМА
	размещения объектов электроэнергетики до 2035 года. Retrieved from:
	http://static.government.ru/media/files/zzvuuhfq2f3OJIK8AzKVsXrGlbW8ENGp.pdf
Transport	DieselNet. Russia and EAEU. Retrieved from:
	https://www.dieselnet.com/standards/ru
	Business Insider (2017). China's ban on gas-powered cars could cripple the oil
	market. Retrieved from: https://www.businessinsider.de/china-ban-gas-powered-
	cars-effect-on-oil-market-2017-9?r=US&IR=T
Buildings	Government of the Russian Federation (2018). КОМПЛЕКСНЫЙ ПЛАН
	мероприятий по повышению энергетической эффективности
	экономики Российской Федерации. Retrieved from:
	http://static.government.ru/media/files/rE6AtHAmGYeZUz51fpCeHYfmuyRzUGow.p
	df
	International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation. Russia. Retrieved
	from: http://g20-energy-efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/buildings-russia.html
Industry	International Energy Agency (2015). Energy audits and energy passports. Retrieved
	from: https://www.iea.org/policiesandmeasures/pams/russia/name-30188-en.php
Forests	Greenpeace. Russia - Sustainable Forest Management. Retrieved from:
1010313	http://www.greenpeace.org/russia/en/campaigns/forests/sustainable-forest-
	management/
Saudi Arabia	
GHG emissions target	Climate Action Tracker (2017). Saudi Arabia. Retrieved from:
for 2050 or beyond	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/saudi-arabia/
•	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/saudi-arabia/
and long-term low emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Forbes (2018). Saudi Arabia Plans To Source 10% Of Its Power From Renewable
	Energy Within 5 Years. Retrieved from:
	https://www.forbes.com/sites/mikescott/2018/01/18/saudi-arabia-plans-to-source-
	10-of-its-power-from-renewable-energy-within-5-years/#6016b32e485f
	Clean Technica (2018). Saudi Arabia set to auction around 4 gigawatt of solar &
	wind capacity this year. Retrieved from:
	https://cleantechnica.com/2018/01/29/saudi-arabia-set-auction-around-4-
	gigawatts-solar-wind-capacity-year/
1	Climate Transparency (2017). Saudi Arabia - Country Profile. Retrieved from:
	https://www.climate-transparency.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/B2G2017- SaudiArabia.pdf.



Transport	Argaam (2018). Saudi Arabia to allow electric vehicles: report. Retrieved from:
	https://www.argaam.com/en/article/articledetail/id/530054.
	The International Council on Clean Transportation (ICCT)(2018). Proposed Saudi
	Arabia CAFE standard for new LDVs 2016-2020. Retrieved from:
	https://www.theicct.org/publications/proposed-saudi-arabia-cafe-standard-new-
	<u>ldvs-2016-2020.</u>
Buildings	International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation. Saudi Arabia.
	Retrieved from: <u>http://g20-energy-efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/buildings-saudi-</u>
	arabia.html.
Industry	Saudi Energy Efficiency Center (2018). Industrial. Retrieved from:
	http://www.seec.gov.sa/en/blog/industrial.
	IEA. Statistics - Global data at your fingertips. Retrieved from:
	https://www.iea.org/statistics/?country=SAUDIARABI&year=2016&category=Key
	indicators&indicator=CO2EnergyMix&mode=chart&categoryBrowse=true&dataTabl
	e=INDICATORS&showDataTable=false.
Forests	Trading Economics (2018). Saudi Arabia - Forest area (% of land area). Retrieved
	from: https://tradingeconomics.com/saudi-arabia/forest-area-percent-of-land-area-
	wb-data.html.
South Africa	
GHG emissions target	Department of Environmental Affairs (2018). Climate Change Bill 2018. Retrieved
for 2050 or beyond	from:
and long-term low	https://www.environment.gov.za/sites/default/files/legislations/climatechangebill2
emissions	<u>018 gn41689.pdf.</u>
development strategy	Department of Environmental Affairs (2012). National Climate Change Response
	Paper. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.sanbi.org/documents/national-climate-change-</u>
Power	response-white-paper/.
Power	Department of Energy (2018). Request for comments: Draft integrated resource
	plan. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.energy.gov.za/IRP/irp-update-draft-</u>
	<u>report2018/IRP-Update-2018-Draft-for-Comments.pdf.</u> Reuters (2018). South Africa signs \$4.7 billion of delayed renewable energy deals.
	Retrieved from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-safrica-power/south-africa-
	signs-4-7-billion-of-delayed-renewable-energy-deals-idUSKCN1HB230.
	Business Day (2018). Cleaner power is a win for Cyril Ramaphosa — and a loss for
	Eskom. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.businesslive.co.za/bd/national/2018-08-28-</u>
	cleaner-power-is-a-win-for-ramaphosa/.
Transport	Department of Energy. Industrial Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from:
	https://www.savingenergy.org.za/programmes/.
	Department of Energy (2015). Draft Post - 2015 National Energy Efficiency Strategy.
	Retrieved from: https://cer.org.za/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/National-Energy-
	Efficiency-Strategy.pdf.
Buildings	National Planning Commission of the Department of the Presidency. National
5	Development Plan 2030 - Our future - make it work. Retrieved from:
	http://www.dac.gov.za/sites/default/files/NDP%202030%20-
	<u>%20Our%20future%20-%20make%20it%20work 0.pdf Department of Energy</u>
	(2015). Draft Post - 2015 National Energy Efficiency Strategy. Retrieved from:
	https://cer.org.za/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/National-Energy-Efficiency-
	<u>Strategy.pdf</u>
Industry	Department of Energy. Industrial Energy Efficiency. Retrieved from:
	https://www.savingenergy.org.za/programmes
Forests	Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries. Forestry 2030 Roadmap.
1	
	Retrieved from: http://extwprlegs1.fao.org/docs/pdf/saf149602.pdf



GHG emissions target	Climate Action Tracker (CAT) (2018). South Korea. Retrieved from:
for 2050 or beyond	https://climateactiontracker.org/countries/south-korea/
and long-term low	
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Institut franceia des relations internationales (2018). South Karoo's nour electrisity
FUWEI	Institut français des relations internationales (2018). South Korea's new electricity plan. Cosmetic changes or a breakthrough for the climate? Retrieved from:
	https://www.ifri.org/en/publications/editoriaux-de-lifri/edito-energie/south-
	koreas-new-electricity-plan-cosmetic-changes-or
Transport	Transport Policy.net. South Korea: Light-Duty: Fuel Economy and GHG. Retrieved
Παποροτε	from: https://www.transportpolicy.net/standard/south-korea-light-duty-fuel-
	economy-and-ghg/
	Transport Policy.net. South Korea: Light Duty Emissions. Retrieved from:
	https://www.transportpolicy.net/standard/south-korea-light-duty-emissions/
Buildings	International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation. South Korea- Building
Dunumgo	Code. Retrieved from: http://g20-energy-efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/buildings-
	south-korea.html
Industry	International Carbon Action Partnership (2018). Korea Emissions Trading Scheme.
	Retrieved from:
	https://icapcarbonaction.com/en/?option=com_etsmap&task=export&format=pdf
	&layout=list&systems%5B%5D=47
	Ministry of Environment. Greenhouse Gas Target management System. Retrieved
	from: http://eng.me.go.kr/eng/web/index.do?menuld=207
Forests	Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (2016). Integrated policy
	for forests, food security and sustainable livelihoods. Lessons from the Republic of
	Korea. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.fao.org/3/a-i5444e.pdf</u>
	Korea Forest Service (2017). The 5th National Forest Plan. Retrieved from:
	http://english.forest.go.kr/newkfsweb/html/EngHtmlPage.do?pg=/esh/policy/UI_KF
	<u>S 0102 010500.html&mn=ENG 02 01 05</u>
Turkey	
GHG emissions target	Ministry of Environment and Urbanisation (2018). Turkey's Third Biennial Report.
for 2050 or beyond	Retrieved from:
and long-term low	http://unfccc.int/files/national reports/biennial reports and iar/submitted bienni
emissions	al reports/application/pdf/1428795 turkey-br3-1-tur.br3.english.pdf
التلفين وتتعاملون والمرام	
development strategy	
development strategy Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.res-legal.eu/search-</u>
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/</u>
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from:
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from:
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement in
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://www.res-legal.eu/search-by-country/turkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement in Europe. Retrieved from:
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement in Europe. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp- content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf
	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency ActionPlan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement inEurope. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sector
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency ActionPlan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement inEurope. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sectorin Turkey. Retrieved from:
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement in Europe. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sector in Turkey. Retrieved from: https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Turkish-fleet-
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement in Europe. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sector in Turkey. Retrieved from: https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Turkish-fleet-baseline_20160318.pdf
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency ActionPlan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement inEurope. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sectorin Turkey. Retrieved from: https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Turkish-fleet-baseline_20160318.pdf International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation (IPEEC). Turkey.
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency ActionPlan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement inEurope. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sectorin Turkey. Retrieved from: https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Turkish-fleet-baseline_20160318.pdf International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation (IPEEC). Turkey.Retrieved from: http://g20-energy-efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/transport-
Power	Res Legal. Turkey- Feed-in tariff. Retrieved from: http://urkey/single/s/res-e/t/promotion/aid/feed-in-tariff-7/lastp/207/ Climate Scope (2017). Turkey renewable energy site auctions. Retrieved from: http://global-climatescope.org/en/policies/#/policy/5180 Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency ActionPlan. Retrieved from: http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf Europe beyond coal (2017). Overview: National coal phase out announcement inEurope. Retrieved from: https://beyond-coal.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/National-phase-out-overview-171219.pdf The International Council on Clean Transportation (2016). The Automotive Sectorin Turkey. Retrieved from: https://www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Turkish-fleet-baseline_20160318.pdf International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation (IPEEC). Turkey.



	Tasarrufu Hedefliyor. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.haberler.com/enerji-bakanligi-</u>
Duildings	elektrikli-araclar-ile-yuzde-30-11201524-haberi/
Buildings	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action Plan. Retrieved from:
	http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1_2018_eng.pdf
Industry	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (2018). National Energy Efficiency Action
maastry	Plan. Retrieved from:
	http://www.yegm.gov.tr/document/20180102M1 2018 eng.pdf
	Monaq (2018). Turkey - The Carbon Trade and Turkish Implementation. Retrieved
	from:
	http://www.mondaq.com/turkey/x/681888/Climate+Change/The+Carbon+Trade+A
	nd+Turkish+Implementation
Forests	New Climate. Climate Change Action Plan 2011-2023 Turkey 2011. Retrieved from:
	http://climatepolicydatabase.org/index.php/Climate Change Action Plan 2011-
	2023 Turkey 2011
United Kingdom	
GHG emissions target	United Nations Climate Change. Communication of long-term strategies. Retrieved
for 2050 or beyond	from: https://unfccc.int/process/the-paris-agreement/long-term-strategies
and long-term low	Committee on Climate Change. UK regulations: the Climate Change Act. Retrieved
emissions	from: https://www.theccc.org.uk/tackling-climate-change/the-legal-landscape/the-
development strategy	climate-change-act/
	Climate Home News (2018). UK will legislate net-zero carbon emissions target, says
	minister. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.climatechangenews.com/2018/04/17/uk-</u>
	calls-advisory-body-test-net-zero-carbon-target/
Power	Reuters (2018). Britain outlines plans for 2025 coal-power phase out. Retrieved
1 OWCI	from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-britain-coal-phase-out/britain-outlines-
	plans-for-2025-coal-power-phase-out-idUSKBN1EU11P
	Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (2018). 2017 UK
	Greenhouse Gas emissions provisional figures. Retrieved from:
	https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
	hment_data/file/695930/2017_Provisional_Emissions_statistics_2.pdf
	Samuel Frankhauser et. al. The UK's carbon targets for 2020 and the role of the
	Committee on Climate Change. Retrieved from:
	http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/wp-content/uploads/2014/02/uk-carbon-
	targets-2020.pdf
	International Energy Agency (IEA) (2015). Contract for Difference. Retrieved from:
	https://www.iea.org/policiesandmeasures/pams/unitedkingdom
	Power Technology (2018). What does the end of feed in tariffs in the UK mean for
	small-scale renewables? Retrieved from: <u>https://www.power-</u>
	technology.com/features/end-feed-tariffs-uk-mean-small-scale-renewables/
Transport	Transport Policy.net. EU: Light-Duty Vehicles. Retrieved from:
	https://www.transportpolicy.net/standard/eu-light-duty-emissions/
	The Guardian (2017). Britain to ban sale of all diesel and petrol cars and vans from
	2040. Retrieved from: https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/jul/25/britain-
	to-ban-sale-of-all-diesel-and-petrol-cars-and-vans-from-2040
	Department for Transport (2018). Renewable Transport Fuel obligation Guidance
	Part One Process Guidance. Retrieved from:
	https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
Puildings	hment data/file/694277/rtfo-guidance-part-1-process-guidance-year-11.pdf
Buildings	Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (2018). Sustainable and Secure Buildings Act 2004. Retrieved from:
	https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
	hment data/file/740245/6th Biennial Report Sustainability Building Stock for W
	1 $1 $ $1 $ $1 $ $1 $ $1 $ $1 $ 1



	ab adf
	eb.pdf Institution of Civil Engineers (2018) Zero carbon homes. Petrioved from:
	Institution of Civil Engineers (2018). Zero carbon homes. Retrieved from: https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Zero_carbon_homes
	IPEEC. UK. Retrieved from: http://g20-energy-
	efficiency.enerdata.net/policies/buildings-uk.html
	Residential Landlords Association (2018). Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards.
	Retrieved from: https://www.rla.org.uk/landlord/guides/minimum-energy-
	efficiency-standards.shtml
Industry	Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (2017). Industrial
	Decarbonisation and Energy Efficiency Action Plans. Retrieved from:
	https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/industrial-decarbonisation-and-
	energy-efficiency-action-plans
Forests	Woodland Trust (2018). Plans unveiled for 50 million tree new Northern Forest.
	Retrieved from: https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/blog/2018/01/new-northern-
	<u>forest/</u>
	Committee on Climate Change (2018). Reducing UK emissions - 2018 Progress
	Report to Parliament. Retrieved from:
	https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/reducing-uk-emissions-2018-progress-
	report-to-parliament/
USA	
GHG emissions target	United Nations Climate Change (2016). First Long-term Climate Strategy Submitted
for 2050 or beyond	to UN Under Paris Agreement. Retrieved from: <u>https://unfccc.int/news/first-long-</u>
and long-term low	term-climate-strategy-submitted-to-un-under-paris-agreement
emissions	
development strategy	
Power	Climate Action (2018). Trump imposes 30% tariff on solar panels. Retrieved from:
	http://www.climateactionprogramme.org/news/trump-imposes-30-tariff-on-solar-
	panels
	Reuters (2018). Billions in U.S solar projects shelved after Trump panel tariff.
	Retrieved from: https://www.reuters.com/article/us-trump-effect-solar-
	insight/billions-in-u-s-solar-projects-shelved-after-trump-panel-tariff-
	idUSKCN1J30CT
	Independent (2017). Donald Trump vowed to revive to coal industry but figures
	show its future is as bleak as ever. Retrieved from:
	https://www.independent.co.uk/news/world/americas/donald-trump-us-coal-
	industry-bleak-future-hiring-growth-prospects-energy-environment-rick-perry-epa-
	a8051886.html
	The Economist (2017). Scott Pruitt signs a measure to repeal the Clean Power Plan.
	Retrieved from: https://www.economist.com/democracy-in-
	america/2017/10/10/scott-pruitt-signs-a-measure-to-repeal-the-clean-power-plan
Transport	IEA (2018). Global EV Outlook 2018. Retrieved from:
Transport	
	https://www.connaissancedesenergies.org/sites/default/files/pdf-
	actualites/globalevoutlook2018.pdf
	Reuters (2018). EPA to relax fuel efficiency standards for autos.
	https://www.reuters.com/article/us-usa-epa-autos/epa-to-relax-fuel-efficiency-
Dutilation and	standards-for-autos-idUSKCN1H910D
Buildings	U.S Department of Energy (2018). Status of State Energy Code Adoption. Retrieved
	from: <u>https://www.energycodes.gov/adoption/states</u>
	Better Buildings. About the better buildings initiative. Retrieved from:
	https://betterbuildingssolutioncenter.energy.gov/about-better-buildings-initiative
Industry	Lexology (2017). Individual states are expected to take the lead in regulating
	greenhouse gas emissions. Retrieved from:
	https://www.lexology.com/library/detail.aspx?g=0f6bf054-27dd-4cc0-b856-
	<u>107b1ad0854e</u>



	Resnet. Energy Efficiency Certificate Trading. Retrieved from: http://www.resnet.us/professional/trading/eec
Forests	United States Department of Agriculture (2015). USDA Forest Service StrategicPlan: FY 2015-2020. Retrieved from: https://www.fs.fed.us/sites/default/files/strategic-plan%5B2%5D-6 6 1715revised.pdf

Sources: Just Transition

Argentina

Civil20 (2018). Business, Civil Society and Think Tanks Joint Statement on Climate Action. Retrieved from: <u>https://civil-20.org/b20-c20-t20-joint-statement-on-climate-action/.</u>

TUCA (2014). PLADA: Development platform of the Americas. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.world-psi.org/sites/default/files/documents/research/en_plada_doc.pdf.</u>

Australia

ENGIE (2016). Hazelwood power station in Australia to close at the end of March 2017. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.engie.com/en/journalists/press-releases/hazelwood-power-station-australia/.</u>

Latrobe Valley Authority (2018). Worker Transfer Scheme. Retrieved from: <u>https://lva.vic.gov.au/worker-transfer-scheme/.</u>

Maher, T. (2017). A New Approach in Australia to Just Transition. World Resources Institute. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.wri.org/climate/expert-perspective/new-approach-australia-just-transition.</u>

Brazil

Brazil. Ministry of Environment (2016). National Adaptation Plan to Climate Change: Volume I: General Strategy. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.mma.gov.br/images/arquivo/80182/PNA_Volume%20I_EN.pdf.</u> **Central Única Dos Trabalhadores (2017).** Com CUT presente, COP 23 dá destaque para 'transição justa'. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.cut.org.br/noticias/com-cut-presente-cop-23-da-destaque-para-transicao-justa-mas-avanco-das-negociac-04cd.</u>

ILO (2018). World Employment and Social Outlook 2018: Greening with jobs. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.ilo.org/global/research/global-reports/weso/greening-with-jobs/lang--en/index.htm.</u>

Canada

Government of Canada (2016). Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and Climate Change: Canada's Plan to Address Climate Change and Grow the Economy. Government of Canada. Retrieved from:

https://www.canada.ca/content/dam/themes/environment/documents/weather1/20170125-en.pdf.

Government of Canada (2018). Task Force: Just Transition for Canadian Coal Power Workers and Communities. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-change/task-force-just-transition.html.</u>

Mertins-Kirkwood, H. (2018). Making decarbonization work for workers: Policies for a just transition to a zero-carbon economy in Canada. Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives. Retrieved from:



https://www.policyalternatives.ca/sites/default/files/uploads/publications/National Office/2018/01/Making Decarbonization Work.pdf.

China

NSB, National Statistic Bureau (2017). Energy Statistic Yearbook 2017, China Statistic Publishing House, Beijing.
NEA, National Energy Administration (2018). Energy Information in 2017, NEA, Beijing.
NEA, National Energy Administration (2017). National 13th Five Year Plan on Renewable Energy, NEA, Beijing.
State Council (2013). Action Plan on Air Pollution Prevention, State Council, Beijing.
Weimin, Y. (2016). Impact of Removing of Over-Capacity in Coal and Steel Industry, News Release of State
Council. Retrieved from: http://politics.people.com.cn/n1/2016/0229/c1001-28158660.html.

European Union

Council of the European Union (2018). Proposal for a REGULATION OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL on the Governance of the Energy Union. Retrieved from:

http://data.consilium.europa.eu/doc/document/ST-10307-2018-ADD-2/en/pdf.

European Commission (2015). Energy Union Package: Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee, the Committee of the Regions and the European Investment Bank. Retrieved from: <u>https://eur-lex.europa.eu/resource.html?uri=cellar:1bd46c90-bdd4-11e4-bbe1-01aa75ed71a1.0001.03/DOC 1&format=PDF.</u>

Just Transition (2017). Commission launches Platform for Coal Regions in Transition. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.just-transition.info/commission-launches-platform-for-coal-regions-in-transition.</u>

France

Ministère de l'Economie (2018). Projet de Loi de Finances 2019. Retrieved from: https://www.economie.gouv.fr/files/files/Actus2018/dp plf2019.pdf.

MTES, Ministère de la Transition Ecologique et Solidaire (2017). Plan Climat- 1 Planète, 1 Plan. Retrieved from: https://www.ecologique-solidaire.gouv.fr/sites/default/files/2017.07.06%20-%20Plan%20Climat_0.pdf. MTES, Ministère de la Transition Ecologique et Solidaire (2018). Contrats de transition écologique : signature des chartes d'engagement des 5 premiers contrats et annonce de 4 nouveaux territoires. Retrieved from: https://www.ecologique-solidaire.gouv.fr/contrats-transition-ecologique-signature-des-chartes-dengagementdes-5-premiers-contrats-et-annonce.

Germany

Bundesministerium für Umwelt, Naturschultz und nukleare Sicherheit (2017). Die Sektorziele im Klimaschutzplan 2050. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.bmu.de/themen/klima-energie/klimaschutz/nationale-klimapolitik/klimaschutzplan-2050/#c11681.</u>

DEBRIV (2018). Zahlen und Fakten. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.braunkohle.de/4-0-Zahlen-und-Fakten.html.</u> **Bundesregierung (2018).** Koalitionsvertrag 2018. Retrieved from:

https://www.bundesregierung.de/Content/DE/_Anlagen/2018/03/2018-03-14-koalitionsvertrag.html.



India

MOSPI, Ministry of Statistics and Program Implementation (2017). Statistical Year Book of India 2017, Table 32.8. Retrieved from: <u>http://mospi.nic.in/statistical-year-book-india/2017/201.</u> Vishwanathan, S.; A. Garg; V. Tiwari (2018). Coal Transition In India: Assessing India's Energy Transition Options, Indian Institute of Management Ahmedabad, IDDRI, and Climate Strategies. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.iddri.org/sites/default/files/PDF/Publications/Catalogue%20Iddri/Rapport/20180609_ReportCOA_L_India.pdf.</u>

Indonesia

International Energy Agency (2018). Indonesia (Association Country). Retrieved from: https://www.iea.org/countries/non-membercountries/indonesia/.

Republic of Indonesia (2016). First Nationally Determined Contribution. Retrieved from: http://www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/PublishedDocuments/Indonesia%20First/First%20NDC%20Indonesia_sub mitted%20to%20UNFCCC%20Set_November%20%202016.pdf.

Reuters (2018). Indonesia caps domestic coal price for power stations, could hit miners. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.reuters.com/article/us-indonesia-coal/indonesia-caps-domestic-coal-price-for-power-stations-could-hit-miners-idUSKCN1GL0F7.</u>

Gass, P. & Echeverria, D. (2017). Fossil Fuel Subsidy Reform and the Just Transition: Integrating approaches for complementary outcomes. International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD). Retrieved from: https://www.iisd.org/sites/default/files/publications/fossil-fuel-subsidy-reform-just-transition.pdf. BP (2018). Statistical Review of World Energy. Retrieved from:

https://www.bp.com/en/global/corporate/energy-economics/statistical-review-of-world-energy.html.

Italy

Clean Technica (2017). Italy To Phase Out Coal By 2025. Retrieved from:

https://cleantechnica.com/2017/10/30/italy-phase-coal-2025/.

Grantham Research Institute on Climate Change and the Environment (2017). National Energy Strategy 2017 – SEN 2017. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/law/national-energy-strategy-2017-sen-</u>2017/.

IEA (2016). Italy - Energy System Overview. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.iea.org/media/countries/Italy.pdf.</u> **Ministero dello Sviluppo Economico (2017).** Italy's National Energy Strategy 2017. Retrieved from: http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/images/stories/documenti/BROCHURE_ENG_SEN.PDF.

Reuters (2018). Highlights: Italian Prime Minister Giuseppe Conte's inaugural speech. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.reuters.com/article/us-italy-politics-speech-highlights/highlights-italian-prime-minister-giuseppe-</u> contes-inaugural-speech-idUSKCN1J118M.

Japan

Business Insider (2018). One developed country is moving back to coal. Retrieved from:

https://www.businessinsider.com/japan-moving-back-to-coal-2018-5?IR=T.

Science Mag (2018). Bucking global trends, Japan again embraces coal power. Retrieved from: http://www.sciencemag.org/news/2018/05/bucking-global-trends-japan-again-embraces-coal-power.



UNFCCC (2015). Submission of Japan's Intended Nationally Determined Contribution. Retrieved from: <u>http://www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/PublishedDocuments/Japan%20First/20150717_Japan's%20INDC.pdf.</u>

Mexico

SENER (2014). Energy Reform in Mexico. Ministry of Energy. Retrieved from: https://www.gob.mx/sener/documentos/explicacion-ampliada-de-la-reforma-energetica.
UNAM (2018). Environmental Agenda 2018: Diagnosis and proposals. Chapter 5: Energy transition. Retrieved from: http://agendaambiental2018.susmai.unam.mx/.
Proyecto18 (2018). Proyecto de Nación 2018-2024. Coordinado por Alfonso Romo Garza. Retrieved from: http://www.proyecto18.mx/conoce/.

Republic of Korea

Cornot-Gandolphe, S. (2018). South Korea's New Electricity Plan: Cosmetic Changes or a Breakthrough for the Climate, Éditoraux de l'Ifri. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.ifri.org/en/publications/editoriaux-de-lifri/edito-</u>energie/south-koreas-new-electricity-plan-cosmetic-changes-or.

Trade Unions for Energy Democracy (2017). Korean Unions Call for a "Just Energy Transition" to Move Away From Coal and Nuclear. Retrieved from: <u>http://unionsforenergydemocracy.org/korean-unions-call-for-a-just-energy-transition-to-move-away-from-coal-and-nuclear/.</u>

Yun, S.-J. & Jung, Y.-M. (2017). Energy Policy at a Crossroads in the Republic of Korea, Friedrich Ebert Stiftung. Retrieved from: <u>http://library.fes.de/pdf-files/bueros/seoul/14488.pdf.</u>

Russian Federation

Science Mag (2017). Russia wants to protect itself from climate change without reducing carbon emissions. Retrieved from: <u>http://www.sciencemag.org/news/2017/09/russia-wants-protect-itself-climate-change-</u> without-reducing-carbon-emissions.

UNFCCC (2015). Russia's submission for INDC - English translation. Retrieved from:

http://www4.unfccc.int/submissions/INDC/Published%20Documents/Russia/1/Russian%20Submission%20IND C eng rev1.doc.

World Bank (2003). Mine Closure and its Impact on the Community: Five Years After Mine Closure in Romania, Russia and Ukraine. Retrieved from:

https://openknowledge.worldbank.org/bitstream/handle/10986/18177/multi0page.pdf?sequence=1&isAllowe d=v.

Saudi Arabia

Bloomberg (2018). Saudi Arabia's Economic Revamp is still and Oil story. Retrieved from:

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2018-05-02/saudi-arabia-s-economic-transformation-is-still-an-oil-story.

Climate Tracker (2018). Bangkok Update: Will Just Transition be part of Paris? Retrieved from: <u>http://climatetracker.org/bangkok-update-will-just-transition-be-part-of-paris/.</u>

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (2016). Saudi Vision 2030. Retrieved from: <u>http://vision2030.gov.sa/en.</u>



South Africa

City Press (2018). Opinion Piece by Minister Jeff Radebe. Retrieved from: http://www.energy.gov.za/IPP/CityPress-Opinion-Piece-Renewable-Energy.pdf. Energy Research Centre (2018). Coal transitions in South Africa, Understanding the implications of a 2C compatible coal phase-out plan for South Africa. Retrieved from: https://coaltransitions.org/reports/. Fakir, S. (2018). The Just Transition debate in South Africa. Retrieved from: http://www.engineeringnews.co.za/article/the-just-transition-debate-in-south-africa-2018-05-18. UNFCCC (2016). South Africa's Nationally Determined Contribution (NDC). Retrieved from: http://www4.unfccc.int/ndcregistry/PublishedDocuments/South%20Africa%20First/South%20Africa.pdf.

Turkey

G20 (2015). G20 Sherpas Meeting: Turkey. L20 Statement. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.ituc-</u> <u>csi.org/IMG/pdf/g20_sherpas_meeting_turkey__15_december__120_statement.pdf.</u> **IEA (2015).** Turkey's Strategic Plan 2015-2019. International Energy Agency (IEA). Retrieved from: <u>https://www.iea.org/policiesandmeasures/pams/turkey/name-148506-en.php.</u>

IEA (2016). Share and trend of renewables in total primary energy supply (2009-2014). International Energy Agency (IEA).

Ministry of Development (2015). The tenth development plan (2014-2018) Republic of Turkey: Ministry of Development. Retrieved from: <u>https://policy.asiapacificenergy.org/node/3168.</u>

United Kingdom

DEFRA, Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs (2007). Commission on Environmental Markets and Economic Performance Report. Retrieved from:

http://www.defra.gov.uk/environment/business/innovation/commission/documents/cemep-report.pdf.

House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee (2017). Sustainable Development Goals in the UK: Government Response to the Committee's Ninth Report of Session 2016–17. Retrieved from:

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmenvaud/616/616.pdf.

Trades Unions Confederation (2009). Targeting climate change, A TUC Education workbook for trade unionists. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.tuc.org.uk/sites/default/files/tucfiles/tuc_targeting_climate_change.pdf.</u>

UK Environmental Audit Committee (2017). Letter to Secretary of State. Retrieved from:

https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-committees/environmental-audit/correspondence/171207-Chair-to-SofS-Education-SDGs.pdf.

UK Government (2017). Industrial Strategy. Retrieved from:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/664563/i ndustrial-strategy-white-paper-web-ready-version.pdf.

UK Government (2018). Clean Growth Strategy. Retrieved from:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/700496/c lean-growth-strategy-correction-april-2018.pdf.

United States



AFL-CIO, American Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial Organizations (AFL-CIO). Resolution 55: Climate Change, Energy and Union Jobs. Retrieved from: <u>https://aflcio.org/resolutions/resolution-55-climate-change-energy-and-union-jobs.</u>

Kok, I. (2017). Coal Transition in the United States: An historical case study for the project 'Coal Transitions: Research and Dialogue on the Future of Coal'. IDDRI and Climate Strategies. Retrieved from: https://coaltransitions.files.wordpress.com/2016/09/coal_us_v04.pdf.

Labour Network for Sustainability and Strategic Practice: Grassroots Policy Project (2016). 'Just Transiton' - Just What Is It?: An Analysis of Language Strategies and Projects. Retrieved from:

http://www.labor4sustainability.org/uncategorized/just-transition-just-what-is-it/.

WhiteHouse.gov (2017). President Trump: Putting Coal Country Back to Work. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefings-statements/president-trump-putting-coal-country-back-work/.</u>

WhiteHouse.gov (2017). Statement by President Trump on the Paris Climate Accord. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefings-statements/statement-president-trump-paris-climate-accord/.</u>